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DLG Acquistons Limitad
Report and financial statements for the year 16 31 December 2022

Strategic report

The Directors present thew strategic report and the audited consokdated financial statements for DLG Acquisitions Limited and 1ts
subysidiaries ( ‘the Group*, "we" ar "gur”} far the year ended 31 December 2022,

DLG Acquisitions Limited (“the Company”) is a joint venture equally and ultimately owned by Warner Bros. Dscovery, Inc. and

Liberty Globalplc The Company acquired Al3Media Moldings Limited which operates the All3Medw production and distribution
business ("al BMedia ") n September 2014,

Ali3Media companies have an unriva led track recard of producing popular and criuca By acclimed 1P, ranging fram contemporary
thrilers, detective ser jes, soap operas, comedy, tostume drama, documentary, true crime, naturai history, formatted
entertainment, factual entertainment, features, Children's, and realty programming. More than 40 production compantes are
based in the UK, US, Germany, 8egium, the Netherlands, and New Zealand producing 4,000 hours annually for linear broadcasters,
VOD, sacial media, and other digital platforms. All3Media’s distribut'on business, All3Media international, exploits programme
rights around the warld from its affices in London, New York, and $ingapare. The Group i facused on innovation, creative
excellence and entertaining all audiences with brilliant programming, from long-tunning returning series thraugh to the launch of
naw formats, new talent, and new bus ness models.

ANZMedia produces a well balanced genre mix of programmes with returning shows ang pternationally renowned brands such as
Midsomet Murders, Call the Midwife, Gogglebox, Great British Menu, Sort Your Life Out, The Cube, Go'l Rush, Berin Day & Night,
Shortland Street, Brokenwood, Lingo and The Circle. This was supported in 2022 with a rch list of new titles such as The Tourst,
The Thief, Hs Wife and the Canoe, Ridiey, Witness Number 3, The Tinder Swindier, My Donor Bady, Polar Bear, and the hit format,
The Trators, that hasalready soid into 20 terrgones,

Ali3Media internationa! distr butes television programimes and formats te more than 200+ territories and has over 30,000 houwrs of
content in its catalogue and represents third party producers tagether wth AlBMedia’s ewn production companies.

Introduction

In 2022, AlI3Med @ produced mose shows than ever and delwered its highest revenue and §BITDA The Group has toncentrated on
arganit prowth and dekvering its key strategic goals — name'y —building the format catalogue, accelerating the push into premium
factual, developing a strong scripted slate, strengthening the dstribution business and iavest ng in the digital bus'ness

FinanciatSummary of the Group Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

£m £m
Revenue 1,020.8 866 6
EBITDA* 100.2 837
EBITDA excluding the effect of IFRS 16 50.3 217
Cash ganerated from operat ons 64.1 [3: 33

* EBTIDA (s caleuiated by adjust ng operat ng profit for interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation, exceptional items {ore off tems
that impact the Group’s EBITOA for the year which do not recur and do not present a far reflection of the performance of the
Group), transitiona ' costs {one off costs of redundancy, property restructur ng and ather restructur ng). transactional costs {costs
relating to corporate development act vity}, costs related Lo deferred consderation and put and call options, but including results
of joint venture s and assoc atas (see note §§
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Strategic report {continued)

Financial and business highlights

*  The Group delivered revenue of £1,020.8m and EBITDA of £100.2m in the year to 31 December 2022.

+  The Group comprises over 40 praduction companies and produced over 4,000 hours of programming, including over 100+
returning shows, and distributed in over 200 territories.

*  The Group maintained its position as a leading produttion company and once again topped the Broadcast Indie Survey, Raw
topped the survey’s ‘Peer Poll’ for the third consecutive year having “built an unrivalled reputation for producing premium
documentaries”.

*  The Group delivered 3 nunber of key programmes Including Hollyoaks, Midsomer Murders, The Traitors (UK and US), Sort Your
Life Out, The Cube, Lingo, The Larkins, The Gold, Life on Qur Planet, Gald Rush, Calf the Midwife, Berlin Day & N ght and Shortland
Street.

+  The Group continues to develop its relationships with the VO D platferms and is now a key provider of programming to the mam
glabal VOD players.

e The Group invested in two production Companies in the year; Build Your Own (8YD) Films, a production company launched by
co-CEQs Vicky McClure and Janny Owen, that specialises in both scripted and non-scripted production, and in sports production
specialist, 3Rock.

=  The Group acquired Pos Video & Television B.V. 35 part of the Group's strategy to grow its television production business.

Princlpal activities and review of the business

The principal activity of the Group is the production and distribution of television programmes. The principa’ aciivity of the
Company is the holding Company of various All3Media production and distribution companies. The Directers do not anticipate any
changes in those activities over the coming year.

The Group's EBITDA is E100.2m for the year to 31 December 2022 (2021: £83.7m}.

The Group’s net debt was £753.4m as at 31 December 2022 (£625.1m at 31 December 2021), see note 27. The currency
denominations of the debt {refer to note 19) reflect the Group’s net cash in-flows, a significant proportion of which are non-sterling
denominated, which is mitigated in part by a natural currency hedge. Gross bank debt and debt external to the Group, excluding
deferred financing fees, was £844.8m as at 31 December 2022 {£713 2m a5 at 31 December 2021).

Stratagy and acquisitions

The strategy of the Group 15 to ach’eve sustainable growth, delivered through a combination of argani¢ growth, acquisition and
geographical expansion. The Group tomprices a broad range of production companies that develop, produce and exploit strong
programme brands that cover multiple genres and gecgraphies, thereby diversifying risk acrass the Group-

Key performance indicatars ("KPIs“)
The Group regu‘arly monitors its KPIs and the followng are considered to be the key KPis for the year to 31 December 2022!

Einancial prof e measures
flevenue was £1,020.8m {2021: £866.6m), 3 17 8% increase on 2021,

EBITDA was £100.2m (2021 £83.7m), a 19.7% increase on 2021.

EBITCA exclud vig the effect of IFRS 16 was £90.3m (2021: £71.7m), a 25.9% increase on 2021

Gross profit margin was 25 8% (2021 restated: 26.1%}. See page 18 for restatement details.

Cath and cash equivalents (net of overdralts] as at 31 December 2022 were £81.6m (2021: £82.8m},

Net cash generated from operating activities, before payments related to deferred consideration and put and call options, was
€61 0m {2021 £60.7m).

Non-UK revenue by destinat'on was £8 9% of total revenue [2021: 65.0%).

The top 30 shows for the year represent 45.5% of total turnover (2021: 47%),

s 325%(2021: 22.9%) of the Group’s continuing revenue comes from secondary revenue sources, includ ng distributlon and
digital revenue {i.e. revenue sources other than those derived from primary production licence fees).

. b & & 0@

Financial risk management

The Group’s operatlons expose it to a variety of financial risks that include the effects of changes In price risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk, nterest rate cash Aow risk and foreign currency risk. The Group monitars these risks and seeks ta hm t the adverse effects an
the financia® performance of the Group by monitoring leve’s of finance and related costs and taking appropriate actton where
necessary.
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Strategic report (continued)

Price rrsk

The Group is exposed to price risk given the nature of the business, but this & monitored to ensure that this risk does not increase
to an unacceptable leve i This s achieved by camparing price acrass the Groug and our use of exclusive P and strong taleat
relationships to leverage our partfol o and negotiate competitive rates for programmes

Credd nsk

The Group has implemented policies that require apprapriate credit checks on potential customers befare sales are made, and
given the Group's customer hase the risk that the Group is expased 1o s considered to be relatively low.

Ligpu ity risk

The Group active y monitors its iquid ty position through cash flow forecasting to ensure that it has sufficient avaitable funds for
aperations and planned expansions.

Interest rote cosh flow risk
The Group has interest bear ing assets and liabilities, Incliding cash and debt commitments. Hedging arrangements, such as interest
rate swaps are in place in order to reduce the exposure 1o thes risk.

Foreqn Currency risk

The Group is exposed to fore gn currency risk through its overseas operations, borrowing and through overseas trading. A cross
wirrency swap 1s in place in order (o swap sterl.ng debt inta US doffar debt, to be serviced by the Growp's ernings in this currency.
Overseas operations are not hedged as cash flows arising create a naturat hedge against the converted debt above.

See note 30 for further details and disclosures around the Group’s financialrisk management.

Principal risks and uncertaintias

There are 3 number of risks and uncertainties facmg the Group The key operational business risks and uncertainties that affect the

Group are considered tobe:

e The turrent macre econam € climate e vding the continued mpact of COVID 19 presems a risk and thallgnge for the Group.
The impact of inflation throughout the Group means that the cost of production has increased since 2019, We continue to
manage th impa <t by reviewing production peotacols and analys ng appactumities to produce comtent more efficiently, with
manhagement monitor ng and Teviewing gross margin KP{'s. The economic environment impacts television advertising spend
which has an impact on the Group The Group mitgates these risk through geographic diversification, and a focus on the
pragramming needs of those broadeasters and media platforms that are less reliant upon advertising as their main source of
revenue, n particular the BBC, the pay television netwarks and SVOD pravders such as Netfix and Amazon.

«  Competition from other television producess for both programming commssions and key talent The Group attempts 10
mitigate ths risk by having a spread of entrepreneuriai, creatwely led companies in the Groug which have strong relationships
w th broadcastin g fommissioners and key ta‘ent, encourage an exceplional level of creativity and have a strong pipeline of
aew programme formats.

»  Success n audence ratings of the Group's programming wh ch may Influence future commiss'onng decisions. The Group
m tgates this risk by atltempting to ensure that the programming offered meets the needs of broadcasters, media platforms
and their respective audiences.

= Pressure on cash fow due to the general economic enyv ronment The Group has sufficient working capita: and adequate
undrawn committed facdities to maigate this risk, including £27.5m undrawn on the £50m revol-ng credit facitty.

Future deveippments

whife there continue 510 be an uncertan e mnomic environment, as well as pressufe on margins in the production sector, the
Group's abiity to produce and sell programmes internationally, together with its continued ability to attract and retain creative
talent, helps to mitigate the impact of this
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Strategic report {cunlinued)

Section 172 statement

The Directors are fully aware of their duty under section 172{1) of the Companies Act 2006 to act in the way which they consider, 'n
good faith, wou'd be most like'y to premote the success of the Company for the benefit of its members as a whole. The Directors
consider that, during the vear to 31 December 2022, they have acted fair’y between members having regard ta the iong term and
the wterests of the Group's employees and other stakehalders, including the impact of its actwities on the community, the
environment and the Group’s reputation, when taking decisions.

The Long Term

The importance, relevance and derand for high-guality television content remains strong in an ever-evolving media landscape.
The D rectors are well aware of the dynamic media landscape, in terms of the evalving consumer consumption behaviours, growth
of new global platforms, and changing tastes in demand for genres and formats. The Directors’ fong term strategy continues to seek
to position the Group to be able to take advantage of these changes by striving to bring together top creative talent, to develop,
praduce and deliver world class television. film and digital content and to maintain and deve op strong relationships both with the
tradiional customers and newer giobal platforms Where confiicts anse between the short term and long term consequences of a
decision these consequences are we ghed careful y. Whilst precedence i given to long term benefits, the Directors will consider
whether these are outweighed by short term impacts in reaching ther conclusions,

Employees

The we fare and deve opment of the Group’s employees is of highest ‘mportance to the Directors. See pages 9 to 13 of the
Directors’ report for a detailed oversight of the Group's Equal Opportun ties Policy, Anti-Harassment and Bullying Policy, employee
invo vement practices, and ta'ent and tra ning in tiatives

Business Relatlonships

The Directors cantinually seek to maintain and develop streng and mutualy beneficial relationships with the Group’s suppliers and
customers The Group engages regularly with its customers and suppl ers through meetings, attendance at television content
markets and other industry events in order to ensure its strategy and va'ues are aligned with customer needs. The Group
maintains strang relationships with and actvely contributes to industry bodies.

The Directors are committed to complying with al:applicab’e local laws and regulations including in relation to modern slavery,
human tratficking and anti-br bery and corruption . Contractual provisions are updated to ensure that external counterparties are
obliged to adhere to all applicable laws and regulatons.

Community and Environment

The Group produces a broad range of programming acress many genres. 'n doing so, the Directors recognise their duty of care to al*
participants and commit to prowiding approgriate support at all stages of programme creation.

As part of the wider portfolio of programming, the Group’s production compan‘es create many high quality and social'y responsible
programmes wh'ch raise awareness of key social and togical issues, aiming to show broad on-screen diversity and inclusion

The Group |s committed to minimising #s emvironmental 'mpact. Details of actions taken by the Groug can be found on pages 11 to
12 of the Directors’ report.

High stendards of business conduct

The Directors strive to operate the business to the highest level of conduct. All staff are required to adhere to the Group's D versity
and Inclus'on Policy and its Anti-Harassment and Bu'lying Policy and adherence is drven by the Group’s management teams.
Operating companies are required to adhere to the Group’s Accounting Policies Manual The Group has an Internal Audit function
which performs routine audits which will review the averall contrel framework and comphance with these policies and procedures

The Directors treat al' external stakehalders collaboratively and fairly, and duly expect a level of conduct frorn thern which aligns to
the Group's va ues. Business pract ces are reviewed by the Group's Finance and Controls Cemmittee which meets guarterly and
includes representatives from both shareholders.
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Strategic report (continued)
section 172 statemant (cortinued)

Fair dealing between members

The Group has two ulti eorporate shareholders, Liberty Global ple and Warner Bros. Discovery, Inc, wha hold equal
representation on the Board. The relevance of each such shareholder may ncrease or decrease depending on the matter or Issue
at question, so the Daectors seek to consider the needs and prianities of each shareholder duning thewr discussions and as part of
thelr decision making.

Approval
Approved by the Board and signed by on its behali-

Arﬁéﬂ&ﬁ'ﬁ_ﬂday 12, 2023 10:22 GMT+1;

Aniithingan
Dwrector
12 May 2023
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Directors’ report

The Directars present their annuak report an the affairs of the Group, together with the audited consolidated financial statements
and independent auditors’ repert, for the year to 31 December 2022,

Capital structure

In May 2019 the Group completed a refinancing of its corporate bank loan facilities, entering into a new €405m first lien facility
[EURIBOR+3.75%), a £74m sacond lien facility (SONIA+8.00%), and a £50m revalving credit facility [EURIBOR+3.75%). In Movember
2019 there was a repricing of the debt which resulted in a reduction of 0.25% on both the first lien and revolving credit facility
There have been no changes in FY22.

The Group’s bank loans 2% 31 December 2022 totalled £551.8m (31 Decernber 2021: £491.4m) as disclosed in note 19 of the
financial statements. The Group’s loan facilities expire between 2025 and 2027,

Business environrient and future outlook

*  The market for content is strong with a growing customer base and increased investment.

e Proliferation of cantent buyers and new commercial business models.

Scale is important and the Group is well positioned for further acquisitions {bolt-on and transformational).

Scripted is a key area for growth with growing global demand, high margin, secondary upside and synergies.

Format success is key given high margins and global secondary exploitation,

US grawth and geographical expansion is central to AIM strategy.

Integrated distribution model drives expleitation of IP giving control and creating long term value in A3M.

Digital platforms driving fast growth opportunities given AVOD spend forecast to double by 2025, fast growing direct to
consumer content distribution is an opportunity {e.g. fast channels, AVOD & $VOD).

* 8 & & & @

Charitable contributions

During the period the Group made various charitable donations totalling £305,875 (2021: £266,278). The Group sponsors and
supports a variety of industry bodies and initiatives, including sponsoring student bursaries through the National Film and
Television Schcol, the Royal Television Society and the Grierson Trust and sponsoring Edinburgh International Television Festva™s
training programme.

Equal opportunities

The Group strongly believes in and actively supports the principle of providing egual opportunities, both to applicants for
employment and to existing colleagues The Group opposes alt forms of discrimination on the grounds of race, colour, nationality,
ethnic or naticnal crigin, age, rehgion or phi'osophlical befief, gender, gender reassignment, marital or ¢ivil partner status, sexual
orientation, palitical view, pregnancy, maternity. or disability. No differentials are operated in salary or contractual terms based on
any of these factors,

The Group's Equal Opportunities Policy 1s m hne with current legislation, and is reviewed and updated frequently. The policy clearly
identifies acts of assotiative discrimmat on and perceptive d'scrimination making it clear to colleagues what these types of
discrimination are and how they can be avo ded.

The palicy applies to every Group colleague [including each employee, worker and individual who is engaged under a contract for
service) who 15 involved in any aspect of the management of emplayment and ta all colleagues who make decisions or
recommendations concerning recruitment, remuneration, promotion, training, demaotion, transfer, and other terms, conditions, or
privileges of emgloyment. It alsc appl es to all calleagues in their relations with other colleagues. This includes giving full and fair
consideration (having regard to the person's partleular aptitudes and abilities) to applications for employment that disabled
persons {as defined in the Equality Act 2010) make 1o the Group. Furthermorae, the Group is committed to continuing the
employment of any employee of the Group who has become disabled during the period in which the Group employed them,
wherever passible. The Graup is commutted to providing reasonable adjustments, training, and development and to continuing to
support their career development,

The Group fully supports the rights and epportun ties of all people to seek, obtain and hold employment without discaimination or
harassment and has adapted all employment policies in line with changes in legislation.

The Group has a separate Diversity and Inclusion Policy, setting out best practice and the Group’s commitment to supporting
diversity and creating an inclusive colture The policy promotes a diverse workforce and an inclusive culture and environment in
which all pecple are accepted and treated with respect, and in which colleagues are able to reach their full potential and deliver
their best work.
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Directors’ report {continued)

Enqual opportunities {continued}

In 2022, the Group appointed its first Head of Diversity, Inclusion and Equity to support and piomote inclusive init'atives. Reporting
directly to Group COQ the role works across afl areas of the bus ness, colfaborating with senior management across the Group, and
warking ¢lo sely with the Talent, HR and Resourcing teams.

Anti-harassment and bullying

All3Media i commated to upholding the princ ple of equalopportunities and we oppose all forms of discrinination. The Group’s
anti harassment and bullying policy dovetails w th the Group’s equal oppertunities policy, dwersity and inclusion poficy and
disciphinary policy, The Giroup is comm ted to providing a working environment that is free fram bullying and harassment and
ensuring everybody who works for the Group in whatever capacity s treated with dignity and respect.

Everybody working w1 any capacity for the All3ivedia Group has a specific responsibility to operate within the boundaries of the
Group’s aati-Ha rassment and bullying poScy. Everybody bas a personal responsibility to ensure that their own behaviour and
treatment of others is dignified and respectful at all times. ndividuals are encouraged to speak out in the event that they
experience any form of inappropriate behav our or witness unacceptable behaviour in athers in arder to support eMorts in tackling
and preventing bullying and harassment in whatever form it may take. Managers must ensure that alt staff understand the
standards of behaviour expected of tham and to take action when behaviour falls below itsrequirements,

Staff are encouraged to disclose any instances of harassment or inappropriate behavigur of which they become aware to their
Manager, thair Company HR representative or to All3Media Group HR, Where individuals fe¢l unable to raise their concerns with
anybody withn their Company or at Al3Mecha, the Group has a free bullying and harassment comp aints helpline, wh ch s run
independent iy by an organisation called TellJane. This is a separate service and externa;of the Ad23Media Group Tell Jane can alse
provide Group companies with bespoke anti harassment and bullying training for both staff and freelancers.

Where an individual has concerns that they believe may amount to whistleblowing, there is s gnpost ng to the Whistleblowing
policy. The All3Media Group has a separate whistleblowing support line, run by Protect, an ndependent whistleblowing charity.

The Group provides an Assistance Programme with LifeWarks which 1s available to everybody working for the All3aMedia Group
regardiess of the type of contract they are emplayed or engaged under. The Assistance Programme peovides immediate and
confidential help for any work, hea th or kfe concern and offers access to up 1o six counselbng or CBT sessions. The Assistance
Programme can be accessed 365 days of the year, 24 hours a day and 1s avallable by telephone, web, or mabile app. The Assistance
Programme remains avaifable to those who leave the Group, for a further 18 months after an end date.

Contact deta is for the Assistance Frogrammie, Tell jane and Protect helplines are mcluded i the Pecple Handbook and are also
accessibie in the Knowledge Library (intranet} on the Group’s communications platform; Workplace Now,

The anti harassment and bullying policy is regularly reviewed by the Group and the Group takes steps to monitor its
effectiveness.

Employee nvolvement

The Group has a comprehensive People Handbook, which 15 updated m iine with changes in statute and reissued twice a year. The
Group a0 1ssues management guidance documents which prowides step by step instruction on handiing comphance and
employment matters, such as right to work and sponsorship procedures.

There are a number of init atives across the Group which encourage employee involvement far example, a Group level health and
safely forum and a head of production working Group These mitiatives provide an opportun ity foe the operating companies in the
Group to share and discuss current practices and industry changes.

The Group 15 connected via Workplace Now, a global platform to support connectivaty

Talent ard Training Initiatives

Ouring 2022, The Group's productions paid into the relevant industry funds; Unscripted UK praductions contribute 0.25% of the
comm ssion budget ito 3 fund, with the contnbutions equally split between the broadcaster and production company; and the
Group drama companies were active contributors to the High-End TV (HETV) Trainng Fund for scripted production,

In addition to the industry funds contributions, the Group participates in various industry placement programmes, working with
many stakeholders and diversity nitiatives.

10
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Directors’ report {continued)

Talent and Training Initiatives {continued)

in 2022, the Group supported:

«  The Scottish PACT Trainee Scheme (in co llaboration with Creative Scotland).

s A Griersan Trust trainee, with a four week placemant at Wise Owl in Leeds.

»  fovyal Television Soc'ety’s Bursary Scheme for undergraduates from socio economic disadvantaged backgrounds

»  Development of the Royal Television Society’s Training Academy and new roni MBA programme.

s gdinburgh Internatiana’ Television Festwal’s (EITF} online training programme, The Network, which supported 30 new
entrants into the industry.

*»  Mew Vnices Awards (Drama Scripted and Convedy), a further Edinburgh initiat e, which Is a celebration of merging
writers, presenters, and Directors from underrepresented backgrounds.

QOther 2022 mnitiatives included.

*  Parinering with the National Fiim and Television School for its Writ:g TV Pilot and TV Drama.

*  Supporting Iconic Steps, a locat south London enterprise scheme, which supports young pecple from disadvantaged
backgreunds.

*  Contributing to the Brtish Forces Broadcasting Services Academy’s inaugural Production Management training course for
vaeterans wanting to transtion into the industry.

*  Delivering six management courses across the Groug in Creative Leadership, Effective Management and Leading High
Performance.

* 32 people quahfed as Mental Health First Aiders across the Group with a refresher course and Managers Mental Health
Awareness courses also available.

Carbon and Environmental Reporting

The Group is committed to contributing to eaviranmentaf sustainability, conducting s business in a responsible way, and
minimising any negative impact on the environment. The Group has an Environmenta! Susta.nability Policy identifying Group aims
and operating campany objectives. The Group has participated in the sector wide Albert consortium since its inception in 2011,
with an aim 1o ¢reating positive change to protect the environment.

Through Albert, the Graup uses the online carban calculator tool to assess the environmenta® smpact of individual productions This
data is combined with both production and non -preducton financial data points, to buldd an accurate picture of our enwwonmenta:
impact as defined by against the Green House Gas Protocol.

The Group's Net Zero Strategy is identifying what it would take for the Al3Media Group to achieve a science-based target of Net
Zero carbon omissions globally by 2030, Accurate, scignce-based data underpins our strategy, working with environmental data
experts to ensure that the Group has the correct systems and measures in place to check our progress. Running in tandem with a
bettar understanding of our impact, is a development of sirategies and policies, both internal and spanning our value chains, to
drive deep strategic decarbonisation.

The Group is committed to implementing an energy management system {(EnMS) in our offices which is compliant with industry
standards and regulations and are switching to green energy supp! ers, reduting our water use, recycling our waste, and promoting
smarter business travel solutions at all properties

The Group has followed the 2022 UK Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines and has used the 2022 UK Government’s
conversion factors for campany reporting.

11
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Directors’ report {continued)

Carbon and Environmental Reporting {continued)
The Group hasused the control approach, whereby the Company accountsfor 160 percent of the GHG em=sions (and energy) over
which & has cantrol. The repart is at Group leve land includes information of sub tdiaries who are required 1o report.

Type of emission Activity kWh litres 1C02e % of 1otal
Natural gas 1,067,374 - 195 35 6%

Scope 1 Propane Gas - 14,234 22 4.0%
Sub-total 1,067,374 14,284 217

Scope 2 Electricity 1,706,609 - 330 50.4%

Total gross emissions 2,773,983 14,294 547 100.0%

niensity metri

Number of employees 918
Tonnes of CO2e per emplayee 0.50
Note:

1 The table above inz'udes all subsidiaries deemed to be ‘large’ under the terms defined in the Compan‘es Act,

2 we have chosen the metric gross global scope 1 and 2 enmussions in tonnes of CO2e per tonne per employee as this best
repre sents the energy tonsumption for our business and in our industry sector.

Geing concern

The Group has net habilities of £180.8m at 31 December 2022, The Group’s liabilites mclude £735 8m of loans from banks and
shareholders that are not repayable before 2027, Management has undertaken a reforecast of 2023 and 2024 under a range of
potential scenarios . The resulting impacts have been tompared to the Group's funding sources, comprnis ng a revoiving credit
facitity of £50.0m [which was £32.5m drawn as al 31 December 2022), and show that the Group can continue as a gaing concern
and meet its liabilities as and when they fall due for a period of not less than 12 months following the date on which the Report and
financial statements of the Group are signed.

Through the analysis, which included the simulation of a plausible downside scenanig, the Dwrectors have venfied that the Company
and the Group have sufficient cash flow resources to maintain operations for the foreseeable future. The Dectors therefore
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Report and financial staterments.

Dividends
Totat dividends of £nit {2021 £12.7m)} were paid by the Company during the year to 31 December 2022. Total dividends of £9.5m
{2021: £9.4m) were paid by subsidiaries to their minor:ty shareholders durmg the year to 31 December 2022,

Note that the Fnanciat risk management and future deve'oprnents are currently d sclosed in the strategic report.

Directars

A Wst of Directors whe served during the year and up to the date of signing cf the f nancial statements ss shown on page 3 of the
financial statements.

The Group mainta ns hability insurance far its Directors and Officers, which s a third party indemnity prowvision for the purposes of

the Compames Act 2006. The policy was in force during the year and up 10 the date of approval of the Report and financia:
statements

1z



DLG Acquisitions Limited
Report and financial statements for the year 10 31 December 2022

Directors’ report (continued)

Statement of directors’ respansibilities in respect of the financial statements
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Report and financial statements «» accordance with applicable law and regulation,

Company law requires the directors to prepare [-nancial statements for each financial year. Under that law the d-rectors have
prepared the Group and the Company firancial statements n accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards

Under company |aw, Directors must not approve the financial stztements unless they are satsfied that they gwe a true and fa r
view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of the proft or loss of the group far that period. :n preparing the
fnanoal statements, the Directors are required to

s select suitable accounting policies and then apply them conslstently,

s ctate whether applicable UK-adopted international accounting standards have been follawed, subyect to any matersal
departuras dischosed and explained in the firancial statements,

+  make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

+  prepare the financial statements on the going concern bas's un ess it i nappropriate to presume that the group and
company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for safeguard ng the assets of the Group and Company and hence for taking reasanable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregutarities.

The Directors are aiso responsible for keeping adequate accounting recerds that are suffic.ent to show and explain the Group's and
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financeal pas tion of the Group and Company and
enable them to ensure that the financkat statements comply with the Companies Act 2006

Directors’ confirmations
In the case of each Girector in office at the date the directors' report s approved.

e 3o far as the Drector is aware, there is no reevant audit Information of which the Group™s and Company's auditors are
unaware; and

s they have taken alithe steps that they ought to have taken as a Direclor In order to make thems«ives aware of any refevant
audit information and to establish that the Group's and Company’s aud tors are aware of that ieformation.

Independent auditors
The auditors, PricéwaterhouseCoopers LLP, have ind cated their willirgness to be reappainted for anather term and appropriate
arrangement s are ba ng made for them to be deemed reappointed as auditars in the absence of an Annual General Meeting

The Directors confirm Lhat to the best of our knowledge:

1. the financial statements, prepared i accordance with UK-adopted International Accounting Standards, give a true and far
wew of the assets, habilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings included n the
consofidation taken as a whole;

} the strategic report includes a fair revlew of the development and perfarmance of the busness and the position of the
Company and the undertakings included in the consal dation taken as a whole, together with a descrmtion of the prncpal
risks and uncertainties that they face; and

3. thereport and financial statemants, taken 2¢ 3 whale, are fair. balanced and understandable and provide the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the company's performance, business model and strategy.

Appraved by the Board and signed on its behalf:

An Mfingan {May 12,2023 10:22 GMT+1)

Anil Jhingan
Director
12 May 2023
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Report and fnancial statements for the year to 31 December 2022

independent auditors’ report to the members of DLG Acquisitions Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opimon, OLG Acquisibions Limited’s Growp financial statements and Company financial statements {the “financial statements”});

* gwe a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2622 and of the Group's lass
and the Group's and Company’s cash flows for the year then ended;

+ have been propetly prepared in accardance with UK-adapted intgrnational accounting standards as applied in atcordance with
the provisiens of the Companies Act 2006; and

+ have been prepated In accordance w ih the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. -

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Report and financial statemants (the "Annua! Report”), which
cemprise: Group and Company balance sheets as at 31 December 2022, the Group income statement, Group statement of
comprehensive income, Group and Company cash flow statements and Group and Company statements of changes in equity for
the year then ended; and the notes to the finanoal statements, which include a deseription of the significant accounting policies.

Basls for apinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”) and applicable law. Qur
responsibilities under 1545 {UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section
of our repart. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our gpinion,

Independence

We remained independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, which includes the FRC'S Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities 11 accordance
with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based an the work we have performed, we have not ideatified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may tas: significant doubt on the group's and the tompany's ability to continue as a going concern for a
period of at least twelve manths from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

n auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the geing concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

However, because not 3ll future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a puarantee as to the group's and the
company's ability 10 contmue as a going concern.

Quz responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directars with respect to going ¢andern are described in the relevant sections of
this report.

Reporting on cther information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditors'
regort thereon. The Directors are responsible for the other information. Qur opinion on the financial statements does not caver the
other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this
report, any form of assurance thereon.

in connection wth our audit of the linancial statements, our responsibility is to read the other informatian and, in doing o0, consider
whether the other information is materially incansistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated, If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are
required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information, If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this cther information, we are required 1o report that fact. We have nothing to report based on thase responsibilities.



OLG Acquisitions Uimited
Report and financial statements for the year to 31 December 2022

Independent auditors’ report to the members of DLG Acquisitions Limited
(continued)

Reporting on ether information {centinued)
With respect to the Strategic report and Directors” report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK Compan es
Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the tourse of the audit, the Compantes Act 2006 requ-res us 3fso to report tertain apinions and
matters as described below.

Strategic repart and Directors’ Report

In our opinien, bassd on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given i the Strategic report and Drectors’
report for the year ended 31 December 2022 is consistent w th the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal reguirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and company and their environment obtained in the course of the audit,
we did not identify any material missiatements in the Strategic report and Directors' report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the firancial statements. the Directors are
respoensible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that
they give 2 true and Fair view. The Direttors are a-s0 responsible for such internal control as they determing is necessary to enable
the preparat on of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether du# to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are respansible for assessing the Group’s and the Company’s atulity to cont nu2
#s a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going cancern basis of accounting unless
the directorsetther intend to liquidate the group or the company or ta cease operat ons, or have no reahstic alternative but to do so

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financlal statements as a whole are free from matenal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to Issue an audtors’ report that includes our opiion. Reasonable assurance 15 a
high leve! of assurance, but 15 not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 15As {UK] will always detect 2 matenal
misstatemenl when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if. individualy or in the
sggregate, they could reasonably be expected to infuence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financia’
statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are mstances of non compiance with 'aws and regulations, We desgn procedures in hne with our
responsibilities, outlined above, to detect materia' misstatements in respact of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which
our procedures are capable of detecting rregu arit’es, including fraud, is detailed below .

Based on cur understanding of the Group and industry. we idestified that the principal nsks of non-camplance with laws and
regulations refated to the Companies Act 2006 and tax ‘egisation, and we considered the extent to which non-compliance might
have a material effect on the financ 3l statements. We evaluated management's incentives and opportunties for fraudu‘ent
manipulation of the financial statements {including the nsk of override of controls}, and determined that the principa® risks were
refated to posting inappropriate journal entries to revenue and management bras w1 accounting estimates. Audit procedures
performed by the engagement team in¢cluded:

» Discussions with management Including consideratlon of known or suspected instances of non-compliance with laws and
regulation,

= Identifying and testing journals, in particular journal entrigs posted with unusual aceount combinations,

s Challenging assumptions and judgements made by managemert in thew significant account-fg estimates,

e Reviewing financial statement d'sclosures and testing 10 Supporting documentation to assess compliance with applcable laws
and regulations.
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DLG Acquisitions Limited
Report and financial statements for the year to 31 December 2022

Independent auditors’ report to the members of DLG Acquisitions Limited
{continued)

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

There are inherent limitations v the audit procedures descnbed above, We are Jess Iikely to become aware of mstances of non-
compiance with faws and regufations that are not closely refated to events and transactions reflected in the financial statements.
Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resufting from error,
as fraud may involve deliberate contealment by, for example, forgery or intentonal mevepresentations, or through collusan,

A further description of our responsibilities for the aud & of the financial statements is located on the FRC s website at:
wwew. fre.org uk fauditorscespansiblities. This desceiption forms part of our audears’ report

Use of this report

This report, inckid g the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in accordance with
Chapter 2 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no ather purpose. We de not, in giving these opinians, accept or assume
respensibl By for any other purpese or to any ather person to whom this report Is shown or into whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

Other required reporsting

Companies Act 2006 ption reporting

Und erthe Corpanes Act 2006 we are required 1o report to you £, i Gur 0pm ion:

*  we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

* adequate accountng records have not been kept by the company, or returns ad for our audit have not been recewved from
branches not visted by us; or

» certain drsclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

® thec y fenancialst, 15 2re nat ln agreement with the accounung records and returns.

Wae have na exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

:ﬁ;ﬂp

Philip Stokes {Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditars
London

17 May 2023
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Group income statement

Continuing operations

Revenue

Cost of Sales

Gross profit

Adrmunistrative expen ses

Other operating income
Amortisation of intan gble assets

Group operating profit

Share of operating (loss) / profit of jont ventures
Share of operating loss of assouates

Total operating profit: Group and share of joint ventures and associates

Finante income
Finan<e costs

Lass before tax
Tax charge on loss
Loss for the year from coatinuing operations

Loss for the year
Less: Non-controlling interests

Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company

12

15
15

10

e = — e ——

Restated *

Year ended Year ended
31 Decernber 31 December
2022 2021
£°000 £000
1,020,793 866,570
{757,310) (640,120)
163,463 226,450
{216,805) {151,010}
207 58
(6,394} {9,944)
40,471 25,554
{220 802

(88} {219)
40,163 26.137
15,084 21,933
{24,978) (65,015}
(29,727) 116,945}
(9,425) {1,209}
{39,152 {18,244)
(39,152) {18,244)
(20 175)
{39,172) (18,419)

* The comporatives have been restated to correctly present Staff costs amounting to £13,277,000 within Cost of Sales, rather thon
Administrotive costs. The restatements have no impact on the balonce sheet nor the cash flow statement
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Report and financial staterments for the year to 31 December 2022

Group statement of comprehensive income

Loss for the financial year
- Group

- Joint ventures

- Assoziates

Total 1ass for the financial year

Other comprehansive {lass)/income that will not be redassified subsequently to
profit or loss:

- Exchange dfferance an retranslation of net assets of subsidiary undertakings

: Other resarves movement

Total other comprehenswe (loss)fincome

Total comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive loss attributable to:
-Owners of the parent
Non controlling interests

Total comprehensive loss

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
£°000 £'000
{38,844) (18,827)
{220} 802
(88) {219}
(39,152) (18,244}
{1,030) 2,280
{1,030) 2,280
(40,182) (15,964)
{40,288) {15,982}
106 18
(40,182) {15,964)
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DLG Acquiaition s Limited

Report and financal statements for the year ta 31 December 2022

Group balance sheet
Registration numher- NAN?FTET
as at 31 December 2022

MNan-current assets

Guodwill and imanghle assets
Freperty, plant and equipment
Right of use assets
Investments in associates
Investments in joint ventures
Trade and other recevables
Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Irventories

Trade and other recewables
Corporation tax asset

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liahilities

Trade and other payables: due within one year
Lease habslties

Carporation tax liabilities

Borrawtngs

Net current assets / [liabilities)
Total assets lass current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Trade and othes payables: due after more than one year
Lease liabilities

Pravisions far liabilities

Barrowings

Net liabilities
Non-controlling interests
Net Jiabilities attributable to owners of the Company

Capital and reserves

Called-up share tapital

Share premium account

Accumulated losses

Total equity attributable to owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests
Total equity

17

Mote

12
i2
14
15
15

20

15
17

22
14

19

21
14
249
19

25
26
26

26

2022 2021
£'000 £'000
535,605 532,036
15,297 15,884
37,459 39,995
2,844 1,862
242 862
2,107 1.949
16,682 16,445
610,836 609,133
267.402 175,774
361,476 290,030
2,006 1,239
81,641 82,793
712,525 $49,896
{836,712} (484,745}
{10,043} {10,335}
{1,869} {2,076}
{93,590} {71,962}
(642,214} {569,118}
70,311 {19,222)

" 681,147 589,911
[62,699) {36,506)
(39,871} {42,771}
{12,356} {5.861}
{747,048) {635,959)
(861,974) {721,097}
{180,827) {131,186}
{2,340) {2,234)
{183,167) {133,420)
3 3

1 1
{183,171) {133,424}
{183,167) {133,420)
2,340 2,234
{180,827) {131,186)

The financial statements on pages §8 to 78 were approved by the Board of Directors on 12 May 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

Anilingah ‘wiay 12, 202310.22 GAIT-L
Anil Jhingan
Director
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Company balance sheet

Registration number: 69023753
as at 31 December 2022

Note 2022 2021
E'000 £000
Non-current assats
Jovestments 15 697,921 605,802
Trade and other recevab®es 18 26,594 37,110
Deferred tax assets 20 - 2,035
714,515 644,947
Currant assats
Trade and other recewables 17 69,799 395,545
Corparation tax asset . .
Cash and cash equivalents 184,638 140,804
254,437 536,349
Current liabilities
Trage and other payables: due within pne year 22 {141,600} {458,731)
BOrrOWings 19 {31,293) (31,293}
{172,893) 1490,024)
Net current assets 81,544 46,325
Total assets lesy current liabitities 806,059 691,272
Non-current llabilities
Trade and other payables: due after more than one year 21 {17,948) {6,231)
Deferred tax Habilties i) {2,830)
Borrowings 13 (722,625) (631,889)
{743,402} (638,120}
Net assets 62,657 53,152
Capital and reserves
{Caled up share captat 25 3 3
Share premium account 26 1 1
Retaned earnings 26 62,653 53,148
TYotal equity 62,657 53152

7
The fnancial statements on pages 38 to 78 were approved by the Board of Dwectors on 12 May 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

&) é- E‘.E sy 12 262310235401

Anl Shingan
Director



DLG Acquisitions Linated

Report and financial statements for the year to 31 December 2022

Group statement of changes in equity

Taral equity
Called-up Share attributable Non-
share premium  Accumulated to owners of  controlling Total
capital account losses the Company interest equity
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000
At 1 January 2021 3 218,478 {313,811) {95,330) 2,216 {93,114)
Comprehensive {loss)fincome-

(Loss)fprofit for the Fmancial year - {18,419) (18.819) 175 {18,244}
Qther comprehensive income/(foss).

- Other reserve movements - - 2,437 2,437 {157) 2,280

Total comprehensive (loss)/ mcome - {15,982) {15,982) 18 (15,964)

Share premium reduction (218,477) 218,477 o -

Tronsactions with pwriars’

- Owvidends to shareholders - 112,719 {12,719) - {12,719}

- Dividends to subsidlaries” non controlling - (9,339) (5.389) - (9.389)
interests

Total transactons with owners - - 122,108) {22,108) - {22,108}

At 31 December 2021 3 1 (133,424) {133,420} 2,234 (131,185}

At 1 lanuary 2022 3 1 (133,424) {133,420} 2,34 (131,185)

Comprehensive {loss)/fincome.

{Loss)/profit for the financial year - - {39,172} {39,172} 20 {39,152}
Other comprehensive income/tloss):

Currency translation differences - - 11,116} {1,116} 86 {1,030)
Total comprehensive (Joss)/income - - {40,288} {ao,288} 106 (40,182}
Share premium reduction - - - - - -
Transactions with owners’

- Div'dends to shareho'ders - - - . - -

Divdends to subsidiaries” non controling - - {9.459) {9,459) - (9,459}

interests
Tota' transactions with owners . - {9,459) {9,459) - (9,459}
At31 Decembar 2022 3 1 {183,171} (183,167) T, 3H) {180,827)
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DLG Acquisitions Limited

Report and finantial statements for the year to 31 December 2022

Company statement of changes in equity

At 1 Japuvary 2021

Comprehensive (loss) / income.

- Profit for the financial year
Totai comprehensive iIncome

Share premium reduction
Transachions with owners:
- Dividends to sharehalders

Total transactions with ownars

At 31 December 2021

At 1 January 2022

Comprehensive income:
Profit for the financial year

-Other reserves movement

Totalcomprehensive income

Tronsactions with owners:
Onidends to sharehoiders
Tatal transactions with owners

At 31 December 2022

Called-up Share Retained Tatal

share capital premium eariings / equity

£000 account {accumutated £000
E'000 losses)
£009

3 218,478 (152,813) 65,668

203 103

203 203

- {218,477) 218,477 -

- (12,719} {12,719}

(12,719} {12,719}

3 1 53,148 53,152

3 3 53,148 53,152

- - 7,008 7,008

- - 2,500 2,500

- 9,505 9,505

3 1 62,653 62,657

3 1 62,653 62,657
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Group cash flow statement

Qperating activities

Cash generated from operations

Income taxes paid

Payments related to deferred consideration and put and call options

Net cash generated from operating actlvities

investing activities

Divdends received frem associates

Proceads on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Purchases of intangble assets

Purchases of property, plant and equipment

Acquisition of subsidiaries net of cash acquired

Amounts (paid} / received 10 joinl vantures and associates
Interest received

Net cash used in investing activitles

Financing activities

Interest paid

Net settlement of swaps

Dividends paid 1o shareholders

Dwidends paid to subsidiaries’ non-controlling interests
Increase In borrowings

Proceeds on issue of shareholder loan notes

Payments made on lease kabil ties

Net cash used in from financing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cach equivalants at beginning of year
Effact of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

27

27

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
£000 £°000
64,323 58,472
{3,324) {7,791}
{56,975) (21,132}
4,024 39,549
153 600
168 2%
(4,438) (1,343}
{4,552) (4,894}
3,167 929}
(625) 102
3,217 679
{2,910} {5,764)
{25,960} (20,681)
(9,508) {9,241)
- (12,719)
{9,506} (9,389)
- 12,589
55,000 17,247
{14,114) {14,656)
(4,188) {36,850}
(3,074) {3,105}
82,793 26,650
1,922 {752)
81,641 82,793
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Company cash flow statement

Operating activities

Cash [usad in)/g from operations

ncome tax es raceived

Paymentsrelated to deferred consideration and pul and call options

et cash used in from operating activities

Investing activities

Cividends received from subsidiaries

Acquisition of subsid aries

interest recsived

Amagunts recerved from intercompany borrowings

Net cash generated from/{used in) in investing actwitles

Financing activities

Interest paid

Net settlement of swaps

Equity dividends paid

Payments against intercompany borrowings
ncrease in borrowings

Proceeds on issue of sharehelder loan notes

Net cash generated from financing activities
Netincrease in cash and tash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Nate

27

27

Year ended Year endad
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
£'000 £'000
(13,375} (5.580)
- 142
{36,556) (17,823)
(49,931) (23,261)
31,689 41,533
- {8,447)

2,296 99
11,000 .
44,985 33,185
{21,585) {18,556}
(9,607} (9,241)
- {12,713}
{3,006) 15,951
- 12,500
55,000 17,247
20,802 5182
15,856 15,106
71,312 S6,444
3] 762
88,166 72,312
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Notes to the financial statements
1. General information

OLG Acquisitions Lmited (registered nurnber 09023753) {the "Company”) is a company incarporated in the United Kingdom and
domiciled in England and Wales under the Companies Act. The Company is a private campany imited by shares The address of the
registered office is given on page 3 The nature of the Group's operations and principal activit®s are set out in the Strategic report
on pages 4 to 8,

These financial statements are presented in pounds sterling because that is the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Group operates Foreign operations are mcluded in accordance with the policies set out in note 2

2. significant accounting policies

Basis of accounting

Accounting policies that relate to the financial statements as a whole are set out below, whi'e those that relate to specific areas of
the financial statements are shown n the correspond'ng note All accounting policies have been consistently appled to all the years
presented.

The financial statements have been ve been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted International Accounting Standards and with
the requirements of the Compames Act 2006 as applicable to companies reporting under those standards

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, modified by revaluation of fitancial aszets and financia’
liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss {as applicable] . Historical cost is generally based on the fawr value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services. The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below

in addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to
which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observatile and the significance of the ‘nputs to the fair value measurement n
its entirety, which are descrbed as follows

»  Level 1inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at
the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputts are ‘aputs, ather than quoted prices ncluded wathin Level 1, that are observable for the asset or fiability, either
directly ar indirectly, and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or fiability.

Fair valug is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabiity in an orderly transaction between market
participant s 2t the measurerment date, regardiess of whether that pr'ce 1s directly observable or estimated us'ng another valuation
technique In eitimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
ability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date.

Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financ al statements is determined oa such a basis. except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of 1AS 17, and
measurements that have some simifarities to Eair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 or value in use in
1AS 36-

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of interpretations and revisicns to exist ng standards have been issued which will be applicable to the Group's financ al
statements in future years, but wil not have a matera* effect on reported profit or equity or on the disclosures in the financia
statements.

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements consolidate the financial statements of DLG Acguisitions Limited and all its subsidiary undertakings
drawn up to 31 December 2022. No profit and loss account is presented for DLG Acguisit'ons Limited as permitted by section 408 of
the Companies Act 2006,

Subsidiaries are inc 'uded in the Group's financia! statements using the acquisition method of accounting. The resuits of subsidiaries
acquired or disposed of during the year are consolidated from the effect've date of acquistion or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate. Purchase consideration is allocated to the assets and liabilities on the basis of their fair value at the date of
acquisition. All ntra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.,
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2. Significant accounting policies {cantinued)

Basis of consofidation{cantinued)

Entities in which the Groug holds an interest on a long term basis and arg jointly controlled by the Group and one or more ventures

under a contractual arrangement are treated as jaint ventures, In the Group financial , joint v are ac ted for
using the gross equity method.

Entities, other than subsidiary undertakings or jolnt ventures, in which the Grougr has a participating imterest and over whose
operating and financial policies the Group exercises a significant influence, are treated as associates. in the Group financial
statements, associatas are accounted for using the equity method.

Where necessary, adjustments are made ta the financal of subsidi assaciates and joint ventyres ta bring the
aceounting paolicies used into line with those used by the Group.

Revenue recognition

The Graup derives its revenue from the transfer of goods and services 1o its customers The Group recogrises its revenue and
attributable profit based an the satisfaction of performance obliga and an rent of when contral ks transferred to the
customer.

Customer contracts come in 2 variety of forms accoss the Group but grimaily fall inte three categocies: cammissiened finished
pragrammes, distribution by third parties, and distribut on by the Group. For each contract, 2 set of performance obligations is
dentified, and a portion of the transaction phce is assigned to each, Transaction prices will generally be fixed in the contract, but
where variable considaration exists, an estimate of its value will e inciuded. Revenue and the attributable profit are recognised on
the satisfaction of the (dentified obligations. Transactian grices are calculated exclusive of VAT and equivalent sales taxes.

For commgsioned finished programmes, the Group considers # has fulfilled its performance obligations at a paint in time on
delivery of each episode to the customer. Both under and overspends are accounted for once known and are recognised in
accordance with the episodt dedvery pattern. Prowision is made for any Jass making contracts as soon as identified {ie expected
overspend is in excess of originally anticipated margin).

Revenues on programmas distributed by third parties and other anciHary revenuves are recognised ¢nce the entity has been notified
of sums due tg it.

For finished programmes and formats destributed by the Group, revenue is recognised once comracted, provided that the product
is available far exploitation by the customer and the license period has commenced.

Cost of sales
Cost of sales are recogmsed in Lne with the attributed revenue recognised in the year, for each type of revenue received in the
year. Please refer to Revenue recognition accounting pobey for details of recognition.

Goedwil)

Purchasad goodwiliarking on the acqus tion of subsidary undertakings and businesses representing any excess of fair value of
consideration over the far value of net assets acquired is capitalised as an intangible asset and amortised over its useful economic
ife. The balance of goodw itand other ntangible assets rs reviewed for impairment on an annual basis and written down to s
recoverable amount if events or changes in circumstances indicate that thelr carrying value may not be recoverable.

Other intangible assets

Programme titfe ntangib e assets are recognised at fair value on the acquisition of a business and are amaortised on a straight -ine
basis over the expecied useful ecanomic lfe of the titles, typically Iwo 1o seven years. These assets are tested for Impairment at Jeast
annually if indicator s for impairment are present, for the de- issioning of a specific programme title. Intallectual
property is generated on capitalisation of specific content creation costs. It is amortised on a straight-line basis over the expetted
useful economic life of the cohtent, typically two to three years, once the asset is avadable to use.

Computer software intangibles are generated on capitatisation of internally-generated costs which occur during the application

deve lbpment stage. Software costs incurred dunng the preliminary project and post implementation stages are expensed as
incurred, Any "off the shelf software purchased tan onfy be capitalised as an intangible asset if ¢ is expected to generate future
economic benefits. They are amortised on 2 strasght hne basis over the expected useful economic llfe of the content, typically two to
three years, once the asset is available to use.
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Proparty, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, p'ant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation Cost compr ses the purchase price of the asset and
directly attributable costs in bring ng the asset to the location and candition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management

Depreciation
Depreciat on s calculated to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment evenly aver their estimated useful lives at the
foliowing annual rates:

Freehold property Cver 50 years
Leasehold improvements 20 - 50%
Furniture, fixtures, plant and equipment 20 -50%
Motor vehicles 20 - 25%

The carrying values of property, plant and equ pment are reviewed for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate
the carrying va'ue may not be in line with the remaining estimated wseful life

Fixed asset investments
Investments held as fxed assets are shown at cost less provision for impairment. The ¢arrying values of fixed asset investments are
reviewed for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Cash and cash equivalants
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cal: deposits, and cther short-term highly liquid investments that are readi y
converbhble to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant nsk of changes in value.

Inventaries
lnventories should be vaiued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable vatue shoutd be based on estimated selling
price less any further costs expected to be incurred to completion.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease, A contract is deemed to be or contain a
lease if the contract conveys the right ta control the use of an identitied asset for a period of t:me In exchange for consideration To
assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether:

. the contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or implicitly and should be physically
distinct ar represent substantially all of the capacity of 3 physically distinct asset. If tha supglier has a substantive substitution
right, then the asset is not identified;

. the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the period of
use; and

. the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Group has this right when it has the decision-making rights that are
most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset is used.

Operating lease rentals below the threshald for application of IFRS 16 are charged to the income statement on a straight line basis
over the period of the lease,

Pensions

The Group operates a defined contribution pensian scheme. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in ant independently administered fund. The pension cost charge disclosed in note 7 represents contributions payable by the Group
to the fund.
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2.  Significant accounting policies (continued]

Taxation

The tax expense for the year compnises current and deferred 1ax, Tax is recognised In profit or foss, except to the extent that it
relates to items recogn sed in other comprehensive income or directly in shareho ders’ funds. In this case, the tax is aiso recognised
in ather comprehensive income or directly in sharehalders’ funds, respect vely,

The current intome tax charge 15 calculated an the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date
in the countries where the company operates and generates taxab'e income Management periodicaly evafuates positions taken in
1ax returns with respect Lo situations it which applicable tax regulation s subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amgunts expected ta be paid to the tax author ties,

Deferred tax s recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and fiabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statemeants. However, deferred tax kabilities are not recogn sed if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill; or arise from witial recognition of an asset or ({ability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accauntng nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred iIncome tax s determined using tax rates fand laws}
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related defesred
intame tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability Is settled

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it s prabable that future taxable profits wid be available against
which the temporary differences can be wtitsed.

Deferred income tax assets and (rebif tres are offset when there is a legally enforceab e right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilit'es and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilit es relate to mcome taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxabie ent#ies where there 15 an intention to settie the balances on 3 nat
basis

Translation of foreign currencies

{a) Functional and presentation currenty

Rems included in the financial statementsof the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
n which the Company operates {‘the functonal currency’ 3. The Fnancial statemeats are presented in “Pounds Sterling” (£), which is
also the Company's functional currency

b} Transochions and balances

Fareign currency transactions are transiated into the funct onal curreacy using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where wtems are re measured . Foreign exchange gans and losses resulting from the sett!ement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and habihties denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement.

Going concern

The Group has net fiabif ties of £180.8m at 31 December 2022 The Group’s liabilties include £738 5m of {oans fram banks and
sharehalders that are not repayable before 202 5. Management has undestaken a reforecast of 2023 and 2024 under a range of
potential scenarios The resuiting impacts have bean compared to the Group’s fundmg sources, COMPrEINg a reve Wng credit
facility of £50.0m {which was £32.5m drawn as at 31 December 2022}, and show that the Group can continug as 3 gong concern
and meet 1s 1abifities as and when they fall due for a perod of not less than 12 months following the date on wh ch the Repart and
finantial statements of the Group are signed.

Throygh the analyss, which included the simulation of a plausible downside scenar o, the Directors have verified that the Company

and the Group have sufficient cash flow resources to manta n gperations for the foreseeable future The Directors therefore
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Report and financial statements

28



DLG Acquisitions Limited
Report and financial statements for the yoar to 31 December 2022

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
2. Significant arrounting policias {continued)

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise 1o a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.

Financiol asset - recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised when the entity becomes a party to the contract and, as a consequence, has a legal right 1o receive
cash.

All financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

All rezognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortrsed cost or fair value, depending an the
classification of the financial assets.

Clossification of financial assets
Classification of financial assets depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition.

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
e thase measured at amortized cost,
*  those to be measured subsequently at fair valug, either through other comprehensive income (FYTOCI) or through profit
ar foss [FYTPLY.

Fingncial asset at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at the amortised ¢cost if both the fallowing conditions are met:

* The asset is held within a business model whose objactive is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

* Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates 1o cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest {SPPI) on
the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Group. After Initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate {EIR} method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in
the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial asset ot FYTOCH

A ‘financial asset’ is classitied as at the FVTCC! f both of the following criteria are met:

» The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selfing the financial assets, and
» The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL.

However, there are no instruments which have been classified under this category.

Finoncip) nsset ot FVTPL
Any financial asset, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCH, is classified as at FVTPL.

FVTPL s a residual category for financial assets.

Derecognition

Afinancial asset {ar, where applicable, @ part of a financial asset or part of 2 graup of similar financial assets} is primarily derecognised
{i.e. removed from the Group's balance sheet) when:

» The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

= The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash Hows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party uader a

‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a] the Group has transferred substantially aif the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b} the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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2. Signiticant accountng policies [continued)

financial instruments {contmued}

impairment of financial ossets

In accordance with IFRS 8, the Group apples the expected credit joss [E{ Ly motel for the measuremens and recogntion of ampairment
loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost e 8., nvestments, 'oans and bank balance.

ECL is the weighted average of difference between all contractual cash fows that are due to the Group s 3ccordance with the
contract and all the cash lows that the Group expects ta recewve, discounted at the origanaleffective interest rate, with the respective
risks of default occurring as the weights. When estimating the cash flows, the Group is required te consider:

» Allcontractual terms of the financial assets (includ ng prepayment and extension) aver the expected life the assets,

= Cash flows from the sale of collatera! held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

financiol liabilities - recognition and measurement

Financial Kabilities are recognised when the entity becomes a party to the contract and, as a consequence, has a legal obligation to
pay cash.

Financial liabilties are classified, at init @) recogniton, as financial hamhtbies at fair value through profit or toss, loans and borrowsngs,
payables, or as derivatives as appropriate.

Al financial liabilities are initially measured at fair vale and, in the case of foans and borrowings and pavables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Graup’s financial liabilities compnites of 1aans and barrowin gs includ ng bank overdrafts

Subisequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial kabities ot fair value through profit or loss

Financial habdties at fair value through profit or {oss include financial fiabilities heild for trading and financial kabilities designated
vpon inital recognition as at fair value through profit or Joss, Financial liabilities are classified as beld for trading if they are incurrad
for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

toons and barrewings
After init al recagnitian, interest-bearing laans and barrawings are subsequently measured at amartised cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or lass when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amort sation pracess.

amartised cost is calculated by considering any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EiR. The EIR amortsation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial kabiity is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires, When an existing
financiailabd 1y s repaced by another fram the same {ender on substantiaily different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substant ally modified, such an exchange or moddication is treated as the de-recogn'bon of the origina’ kability and the recognition
of a new liability, The difference in the respect ve carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsettng financial instruments

Financial assets and liabiitres are off set and the et amount $ reported in the balance sheet where thereis a legally enforceab e right
10 offset the recognised ameunts and there is a1 intention to setile on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the iability
s multanesusly.
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2. Siguificant accounting policies {continued)
Financial instruments {continued)

Derivative finoncial instruments
The Group enters into 2 variety of derivat've financiatnstruments to manage its exposure to intesest rate and foreign exchange
rate risk, incluging interest rate swaps and cross currency swaps. Further detais of these instruments are disciosed in note 30.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured
to their fair value at each balance sheet date. The resulling gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the
derivative is designated and effectve as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in profit or kess depends
on the nature of the hedge relationship.

A derivative with a postive fair value s recognised as a financial asset whereas a derivative with a negative fair value is recognised
as a financial liability. A derivative 1s presented as a non-current asset or a non-current Zability if the remaning maturity of the
instrument is more than 12 moaths and it is not expected to be realised or settied with'n 12 months. Other derivatives are
presented as current assets or current liabilities.

Provisions
Provisions are recogn sed when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable
that the Group will be requred to settle that obhgation and a rehable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recogised as a provision & the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision s measured using
the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows {(when the
effect of the time vaue of maney is material).

Wwhen some or al: of the econom ¢ benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if 4 is virtually certain that reimbursement witl be received, and the amount of the receivable
tan be measured rehably. '

Capital management

The Group’s ebjectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Grougp's ability to continue as a going concern and provide
returns for sharehalders. The Group monitors its capital on a regular and continuous basis, ensuring sufficient capita’is in place for
the Group's angoing trading requirements.

In addition to the above, we seek to enterinto derivative instruments to protect against increases in the interest rates cn our
variable-rate debt and foreign currency movements, particularly with respect to borrowings that are dencminated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the borrowing entity. We have entered into derivative instruments to manage interest rate
and foreign currency xposure with respect to the US Dollar and the Euro.

Further details of the capital structure of the Group can be found in the Directors’ report an page 9.
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3. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting palicies, which are described in note 2, the Directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are befieved to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
perod 1n whith the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. There ace no eritical judgements that have significant
r sk of causing & material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets 2nd liabilities within the next financial year.

The estimatas that have significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the careying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are addressed below.

Critical accounting estimates and judgemants

{a) impoirment of trade and other debtors, controct assets and intercampany balances

The Company makes an estimate of the recoverable value of trade debtors, contract assets and intercompany balances. When
assess ng the impairment of trade and other debtors, management considers factors including the credit rating of the receivable, the
ageing profile of receivables and historical experience. The expected credit [0ss model was applied to trade debtors, contract assets
and intercompany balances and the impact was not material. See notes 17 and 18 for the pet tarrying amourt of receivables and
associated impairment provsion.

(&) Recoverability of work i progress

The Company review sthe recoverability of its work in prograss, derived from programmes during production which are included in
the Bafance Sheet, on a continuous basis, The Company believes that the anticipated revenues will enable the carrying amount of
work in progress to be recovered in full that future economic benefits will be recognised by the Group.

(c} Useful econornic lives of tongible fixed ossets

The annual deprecration charge for tangible fixed assets s sensitive to changes in the estimated useful aconomic fves and residual
values of the assets. The useful economic ives and residual values are re assessed annually. They are amended when necessary to
reftect current estimates, based on technological advancement, future investments, economic utilization and the physical condition
of the assets See note 13 for the carrying amgunt of the tangible fixed assets.

{d] Corrying value of nvestments

The Directors behieve that the carrying value of the investments rs supported by their underlying net assets. The Drectors carry out
an impairment assessment on the investments hefd if events or changes in circumstances [ndicate the carrying value may not be
recoverable In performing the impasment assessrent, the present value of future cash Hows are cakculated based an three year
financial forecasts approved by 3 Director. Cash flows for the periods beyond the forecast period have been extrapolated using the
1.9% historie leng term GOP annual regipnal growth rate The discount rate applied against the anticipated future cash flows is based
an a pre-tax estimated werghted average <ost of capital of 106% A reassnable change in the key assumptions does not have a
s gnificant :mpact on the d fierence between value in use and the carrving value.

(e} Earn out & put end call arrangements

The fair value of the Hak dities in respect of earn -outs and put and cal arrangements are valued based on grojected operating results
of the relevant entity . applied to the caiculation as determined by the relevant sa’ and purchase agreement. These are discaunted
using a discount rate of 10%. A reasonable change in the key assumptions does not have a significant impact on the difference
between value in use and the carrying value.

(f} Foir value of derivatives

We perform recurring fair value measurements with respect to pur dervatve instruments, which are carried at fair value. We use
cash flaw valuation models to determ ae the fair va ues of our interest rate and forefgn currency dervative instruments. Most of
the inputs to these discounted cash flow models cons st of, or are der ved from, observable Level 2 data for substant aliy the full
term of these derrvative instruments This observable data includes most interest rate futures and swap rates, wh ¢h are retrieved
or derived from available market data.

(g) Goodwill
The key accounting estimates and judgements are as detai'ed in note 12,

{h) intongibles
The key accounting estmates and judgements are as detaled in note 12.
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4. Revenue

In the opinion of the Directors, the Group operated only one class of business throughout the year, namely the creation, sale and
distribut:on of television and film programmes and other digital content and related ancillary services

An analy 95 of revenue by geographical market destination is given below (excluding turnaover of joint ventures and astaesates). This
is also considered to depict how revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factars:

Year to 31 December 2022 ¥oar to 31 Decemnber 2021
unigin Destination Qrigin Destination
£'000 £000 £000 £'000
United Kirgdom 737,429 317,109 576,495 303,510
United States of Amer€a 140,673 418,403 152,157 321,682
Rest of the world 142,691 285,281 137.918 241,378
1,020,793 1,020,793 866,570 866,570

An analysis of lass before taxation and net assets/{labilities} by business location is given below:

Year to 31 December 2022 Year 10 31 December 2021
profit/(loss) Netassets  {Loss) / profit Net assets
before tax / (liabikities}) before tax / {lianilities)
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
United Kingdom 38,631 201,842 {19,964} 74,235
United States of America (687) {11,067} 1,532 {10,748}
Rest of the world 8,613 (64,485} 54,512 (15,695}
46,557 126,290 36,080 47,792
Net finance cost (69,890 - {43,081}
Intaagible amortisation and Accummutlated losses {6,394) - (9,944}
Bank loans and amounts owed to parent undertakings - (844,759) - (713,248)
Intangible assets - 535,605 - 532,036
{29,727) (182,864} {16,945 (133,420)

Contract assets held by the Group are accrued revenue of £150,5m (2021: £108.9m). Contract liabilities are defesred revenue of
£275.3m (2021: £217.2m). Deferred revenue as at 31 December 2022 was released to reveaue in the year and deferred revenue as
at 31 December 2022 relates 1o new contracts entared in the year.
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5.  Group operating profit

Group operating profit has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of Right of Use Assets (iFRS 16)

Profi on disposalof property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of Intangible assets

Operating lease charges outsida the scope of IFRS 16
-Land and buldings

«Equpment

Year ended
31 December
2022

£'000

5,295
10,247
(74)
5,394

138
303

Year ended
31 December
2021

£'000

5,187
10,542

{5)
9,944

30
248

Management deem EBITDA to be the most appropriate way of managing performance within the business, as it is tlosely ahgned 13

our recurring cash prof s of the Group.

EBTIDA is calculated by adjusting operating profit for interest, tax, deprecation, amortisation, exceptional items {one off items that
impact the Group's EBITDA for the year which do not recur and do not present a fair reflection of the performance of the Group},
transitional costs (one-off costs of redundarncy, praperty restructuring and other restructuring), transactional costs {costs relating
to corposate develbpment activity), costs related to deferred consideraton and put and call optians, but includ ing resuits of joint

ventures and assiates. See reconcdation of EBTIDA below:

Operating profn

Amortisation of intangible assets

Costs re bted to deferred compensation, consideration and put & ¢31l options
Redundancy, restructuring and transactional costs (e.g, ene-off restructuring)

Exceptional costs

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Oepreciation of Right of Use Assets {IFRS 16)
Management fees to shareho'ders

Share of operating results of jo int ventures and associates
Proft on disposal of property, plant and equipment

EBITDA

12

13
14

Yaar ended Yesr ended
31 v b 310 h

1022 2021

£'000 £'000

530,471 25,554

6,394 9,544

22,544 165,761

12,665 11,546

- 178

5,295 5,187

10,247 10,542

3,000 3,000

{308) 582

(74} (5)

100,234 83,689
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
6. Auditors’ remuneration

The analys-s of the auditors’ remuneration s as follows:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December

2022 2021
£'000 £°000
Fees poyoble to the Company's auditors and their associgtes for the oudit of the
Group’s financial staterments -
- The audit of the Group consofidated financial stalements 223 241
-The audit of the Group's subsidiaries 8241 947
Total audit fees 1,064 1,188
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors for non-oudit services.
-Other services - -
Total non-audit fees - -
Total 1,064 1,188

7. Staff numbers and costs

The average monthly number of persons employed by the Group finc’ud ng Directors remunerated by the Group) guring the year,
analysed by category, was as follows:

Year endad Year ended

31 December 31 Decambar

2022 2021

Number Number

Production 2,455 1,949
Adrninistration 924 1,024
Sales 53 52
3,432 3,025

The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were as follows:
Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

£000 £'000

Wages and sa aries 201,751 178329
Soual security costs 24,021 21189
Cther pension costs 4,845 4,630
230,617 203,548

The Group also has a number of freelance staff. hired on a production basis, whose costs are included within cast of sales and are
not reflected i the abave tab'e.

No Directors’ emoluments are pait by DLG Acquisitions Limited to its statutory Directors These O rectors are remunerated by

subsidiary companies of Warner Bras Discovery, Inc. and Liberty Global plc. In lieu of th's, a management fee is payable by DLG
Acquisitions Limited to subs diary companses of Warner Bros. Discovery, nc. and L berty Glabal plc, as disclosed n note 33
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DLG Acquisitions Lim ted .
Aeppst and fnancal statements for the year 1o 31 December 2022

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

7. Staff numbers and costs {continued)

Far the year to 31 December 2022, total Directors” emaluments in¢luded within the management fee came to £1.1m {for the year

to 31 Detember 2021: £1.4m})

During the same year, amounts incurred ta other Non -Drector key management personnel as compensation were

Aggegate remunerat on including long-term incentive schemas
Cempany pensica contributions to persanal pension schemes

8. Finance intome

Exchange differences gain

Bank interest recevabie

Met gan arising on financial liabilities classified as Fair value through Profit or Loss
Other interest recelvable

9. Finance ¢osts

Net foss ansang on financial iabifities ¢ Bssified as Far Value through Profit or Lass
Interest on bank overdrafts and loans

Amortised fees on borrowings

Interest on laans from related parties

Exchange differences loss

Qther interest payable

Interest payable on Lease Liabilities

Year ended Year ¢nded

31D 3D b
2022 2021
£'000 £'000
4,140 5936
f ]
4,196 5,932
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 021
£900 £'000
- 21,012
3,508 393

11,203

377 528
15,088 21,333
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
£'000 £'000
- 57640
35,484 28,859
1,230 1.264
16,106 12,419
13,803 -
15,113 13,460
3,142 3,253
84,978 65,015
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DLG Acquisition s Limited
Report and financia!l statements for the year to 31 December 2022

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

10. raxcnarge onlass

Current tax
- UK corporation tax
Current tax on intome for the year
Adjustment in respect of prior year
- Foreign tax
Current tax on income far the year
Adjustment in respect of prior year

Share of joint ventures’ tax
Total current tax
Deferred tax
Onginating and reversal of temperary differences
« Adjustment in respect of prior year
Effect of changesin tax rates

Tatal deferred tax

Tatal tax charge on loss on ordinary activities

Year ended Year erxled
31 December 31 Becember
2022 2021

£'000 £'000

987 2,625

{537) (257)

2,230 4,666

{309) 151

2371 7,185

2371 7,185

6,911 [6,456)

578 124

(435) 445

7,054 {5,586)

9,425 1,299

The man rate of corporation tax is curcently 19% but thiswill increase to 25% from 1 April 2023. The rate increase has been
substantrvely enacted and therefore the deferred tax balances have been recognised at the rate they are expected to reverse.

The tax charge/{ credit) for the year can be reconciled to the loss in the inceme statement as follows:

Loss on ordinary actiities before tax

Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 19% (31 December 2021: 19%)

Fax effects of:

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Income not chargeabe for tax purposes

Righer rates of corporation tax on overseas profits

Recognition of deferred tax on previously unrecopnised 'osses
Adjustments in respect of prior period

Current year iosses for which no deferred tax has been recognised
Overseas tax suffered {net of any creditable tax)

Tax rate difference betweéen current tax and deferred tax

Effect of changes in tax rates on deferred tax opening ba'ances

Tax charge For the year

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 Cecember
2022 2021
£000 £'000
(29,727} {16,945)
[5,648) (3,220}
15,961 11,096
[5,408) (3,965)
279 1,405
- (6,477}
[269) 13
1,868 2,313
516 442
2,561 1758}
(435) 446
9,425 1,299

Other than the amount tharged to the income statement, no amounts relating to tax have been recognised in other comprehensive

income and no amounts have been recogrised directly in equity.
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DLG Acquisitions Limited
Report and fnancial statements for the year to 31 December 2022

Notes to the financial statements {continued)

11. Results atiributable ta the Parent Company

The profit after tax, before external dvidends, dealt w th In the linanca’ statements of the Parent Company is £7,005,181 (2021
profit of £203,481).

12. Intangible assets

Computer
rou| Goodwill Content Software Total
£'000 £000 £000 £'000
Cost
Al 1l Janwary 2021 524 K7D 165,280 - 688,950
Transfers* - - 6,15% 6,159
Additiens 4,769 8,122 766 13,657
Exchange adjustment 55} (16} {71)
At 31 December 2021 529,384 173,402 6,909 709,695
Accumulated amortisation snd impairment
At 1 January 2021 {17,100} {146,635} - {163,735}
Transfers* - - (3,994) (3,9941
Exchange adjustment - - 14 14
Amartisaton provided during the year - {8,620} (1,324) (9,944§
At 31 December 2021 {17.100) [155,255) {5,304) (177,659)
Net Baok Value
At 31 December 2021 512,284 18,147 1,605 532,036
At 31 Decamber 2020 507,570 13 645 526,215
Cost
At 1 January 2022 529,384 173,402 6,909 709,695
Additions 294 2456 1,947 7,317
Acquisiton of subsidiaries - 2,656 . 2,656
Exchange adjustment 42 - 41 83
Oisposa! - 147) - (47)
At 31 December 2022 532,340 178,467 8,897 719,704
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At 1 January 2022 {17,190} {135 255} (5,304) (177,659)
Exchange adjustment . - (46) (48)
Amortisation provided during the year . (5.183) {1,211) {6,394)
Ar 31 Cecember 2022 {17,100) (160,4338) {6,561} {184,099)
Net Book Value
At 31 December 2022 515,240 18,029 2,336 535,605

At 31 Derember 2021 : 512,284 18,147 1,605 532,036




DLG Acguisitions Limited
Report and financial statements for the year to 31 December 2022

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
12. intangible assets {tontinued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisitions is capitalised with an indefinite useful life and tested annually for impairment. for the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows {‘cash generating
units’). Goodwill is allocated to the cash generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination.

The largest elements of the goodwill held within the Group are £143,790,000 (2021: £149,790.000) in respect of All3Media
International Limited, £69.846,000 (2021: £69,845,000) in respect of Lime Pictures Limited, £58,768,000 (2021: £58,768,000) in
respect of Optomen Television Limited and £54,489,000 {2021 £54,489,000) in respect of Ali3Media Deutshland Limited; per IAS 36
para 134 regarding information for each CGU with goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. An impairment review
has been conducted. The recoverable amount for gocdwill has been determined based on value in use, being the present value of
future cash flows based on three-year financial budgets approved by management.

Cash flows for the periods beyond the approved financial budgets have been extrapolated using a 1.9% historic long-term GOP annual
regional growth rate. The discount rate applied against anticipated future cash flows is based on a pre-tax estimated weighted
average cost of capital of 10.6%, which is deemed applicable to each cash generating unit as they are within the same industry and
exposed to similar risk. A reasonable change in the key assumptions, for example a 5% drop in EBITDA beyond the approved financial
budgets, does not significantly impact the difference between value in use and carrying value.

As a result of the annual impairment assessment and a review of forecast future cashflows, an impairment of £nil has been made to
goodwill far the year to 31 Decemnber 2022 (2021. Enil).

Other intangible assets

Within content intangible assets programme litles are recognised at fair value on the acquisition of a business and are amortised
on a straight-line basis over the expected useful economic life of the titles, typically two to seven years, These assels are tested for
impairment at least annually if indicators for impairment, for instance the de-commissicning of a specific pragramme title, are
present,

Intellectual property is generated on capitalisation of specific content creation costs. It is amaortised on a straight-line basis over the
expected useful economic life of the content, typically three years, once the asset is available to use.

No intangible assets are held by the Parent Company {2021: £nil}.

*During the prior year, the Group concluded that certain capitalised software held in Property, plant and equipment was
appropriate to be recognised within Intangible assets

EL



UG Acquis t'ons Limited
Raport and fnancial statements for the year to 31 December 2022

Notes to the financial statements {continued)

13. Property, plant and equipment

Furniture,
fixtures,
Freehold Leaseheld plant and Motor
property imp qui vehicles Total
£°c00 £°000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Group
Cost
At 1 January 2021 3,833 4,669 19,750 767 29,055
Add tions 351 594 3,865 99 4,909
Acquired with subsidiaries - 792 460 - 1,252
TransFers® 4 {6,159) {6,155)
Disposals - - {2.538) (30) (2.718)
Exchange adjustmant - {412) 6 {406)
At 31 December 2021 4,184 6,055 14,856 342 25,341
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2021 (191) {1,873) (8,569) {267) {10,900
Acqu red with subsidanies {579} {448) - {1,027y
Transfers® - 3 3,994 - 33997
Charge for the year (71) {590} (4.364) (162) {5.187§
D sposals - {25} 2,726 26 2727
Exchange adjustment - {16} 354 {5} 333
At 31 December 2021 (262) {3,080} {6,307) {308} [10,067)
Net Book Valug
At 31 December 2021 3822 2,979 8,549 434 15,884
At 31 December 2020 3,642 2,796 11221 500 18,159
Cost
At 1)anuary 2022 4,184 6,059 14,856 842 25,941
Additions 117 301 4027 137 4,582
Acquired with subsidaries - - - - -
Disposals {1,687) 16,297 [105) [8.089)
Exchange adjustment 267 326 79 1,172
At 31 December 2022 4,301 4,940 13,412 953 23,606
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 lanuary 2022 {262) {3,080} {6.3€7)} {403} {10,057}
Acquired with subsidiaries - - - - .
Charge for the year {104) {714} (4,289) (188} {5.295)
Disposals - 1,662 6,151 86 7,899
Exthange adustm et (146) (6E6) (44} (856)
At 31 December 2072 (366} (2,278) {5.111) {554) (8,309)
Net Bogk Value
At 31 December 2022 3,935 2,662 8,301 139 15,297
At 31 December 2021 3,922 25879 8,549 434 15,884

a0



DLG Acquisitions Limited
Repart and financial statements far the year to 31 December 2022

Notes to the financial statements (continued}

13, Property, plant and equipment

“During the prios year, the Group concluded that certain capitalised software held in Property, plant and equipment was
appropriate to be recognised within Intangible assets.

No property, plant or aquipment is held by the Parent Company (2021: £nil}.
14. Leases

Amounts recognised in the balance sheet {Group)

2022 2021
£°000 E000
Right of use asset [NBV)
Buikdings 37,155 39,519
Equipment 120 280
Vehicles 134 156
37,459 39,995
Lease liabilities
Current {10,043) (10,335!
Non-current {39,871} {42,771}
{49,914} {52,106}
Additions to right of use assets during the year were £3,374,000 {2021: £6,850,000).
Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss
Yaar ended Year ended
31 December 31 Cecember
2022 2821
£000 £'600
Depreaciation charge on right of use assets
Buildings 9,874 10,147
Equipment 241 273
Vehicles 132 122
10,247 10,542
Other charges
Interest expenses iincluded within finance cost note 10} 3,142 3,253
Expense related to non-IFRS 16 leases 414 278
3,556 3,531

The total cash outflow for leases i the year was £14,114.000 (2021 £14,696.000}

The Graup leases vaniays offices, warehouses, retad stares, equpment and vehiclds Rental contracts are typically made for fixed
periads of 6 months to 8 years, but may have extension opt ons as destibed below.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Group al-.ocates the cansideration in the cantract to the lease and
nan-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for which the Group 15 a lessee, 1t
has elected not to separate "ease and non-lease components and nstead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an ‘ndividual basis and contan a wide range of different terms and canditions, The fease agreements
do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the ‘eased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not
be used as secury for borrowing purpotes



(LG Acqusitions Limited
Report and financial staternents for the year to 31 December 2022

Notes to the financial statements {continued)
14. Leases {continued}

Aswets and liabil ties arsing from a jease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value

o*the following lease payments:

+ fixed payments including in substance fixed payments), less any lease ncentives receivable,

- variable Yease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate 35 at the
commencement date,

- amounts expected 1o be payable by the Graup under residual value guarantees,
the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasanably certain 10 exercise that oplion, and

- payments of penaltie sfor terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exarcising that option.

Lease payments ta be made under reasonably certain extension optlons are also included in the measurement of the liability.
Fhelease payments are discounted using the interesk rate implicit in the lease, If that rate cannot be readily determined, whichis
generally the case for lease s in the Graup, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee
would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
envirppment with similar terms, secufity and conditions.

The Campany dees not hold any cases at 31 Decembar 2022 {2021: none).

15. investments

Company

Subsidiaries Jaint Total
Ventures

£000 £'000 £000
As at 1 January 2022 . 605,802 605,802
Additions 102,500 102,500
wnpairment recognised during the year (1G.381} - (10,381}
As 3t 31 December 2022 607,921 - 697,921

An mvestment mpairment has occurred due to the cessation of trade within an investment held by OLG Acquisitions ttd. The relevant
investment has been reduced 1o nil value due to a lack of future cashflows expected from this entity,

Group
2022 2021
£000 £'000
Jo nt ventures 742 962
Associates 2,944 1,862
3,686 2,824
Group - joint ventures
2022 2021
£000 £000
As at i lanuary 552 -
Share of 1oss / (profit} retained by Jont ventures {220} 802
Other adjustments - 160
As at 31 December 742 962
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Report and financial staternents for the year to 31 December 2022
Notes to the financial statements {continued)

15, investments [rantinued)

The detaily of the joint ventures held by the Group as at 31 December 2022 are set gut below. These are al' unlisted. Shares held by

an intermediate hold.ng company are indicated with an asterisk {*}.

Country of Voting

Name of Campany incorporation rights % Nature of business

A Seat Al The Table Limited England & Wales (1) *50.0% Telovision production
Company Stormdog Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *50.0% Television production
Earthshot Studios Limited England & Wales {1) *50.0% Television praduction
FLCP [Agatha Raisin 3) Limited England & Wales (1) *50.0% Televisian production
FLCP [Agatha Raisin 4) Limited England & Wales {1} *50.0% Television production
The Holiday Productions Ltd England & wales {1} *50.0% Television production
Studio Silverback Limited England & wales (1) 50.0% Television production and distribution
Ocean 25 Limited England & Wales (1) *50 0% Teievision producton
gg;l::‘avne' Community Interest E€ngland & Wales {1) “c0.0% Television product’'on
Studio Silverhack Froductions Limited tngland & Wales {1} *50.0% Television productan

At 1January

Addition of associated undertakings
Profit retained for the year
Exchange adjustment

Dividends recewed

As at 31 December

2022 2021
£'000 £000
1,862 2,245
875 -
334 374
a6 {s7)
{153} (701)
2,944 1,362
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DLG Acquisitions Limited

Report and financiaistatements for the year to 31 December 2022
Notes to the financial statements {continued)

15. investments {continued]

The details of the associate undertakings held by the Group as at 31 Oecember 2022 are set out below. These are al! unlisted. Shares
held by an intermediate holding company are indicated with an asterisk (*].

Country of Voting

Name of Company incorporation rights % Nature of business

Bullion Productions Limited England & Wales {1} *74.99% Television production

Bulhion Productions Netherlands B.V. Netherlands {11} *24.99% Television production

Caravan Media Limited England & Wales (9) *19.99% Television production

Great Scott Media Limited England & Wales (1) +20.0% Television production

Kura Productions Limiled New Zealand {12} *51.0% Television production

Moon Stories Limited England & Wales (1) *13.5% Televisian production

Moon Stones {Australia) Pty Ltd Austraha {15) *13.5% Television production

S?ories2 Limited England & Wales (1} *27.02% Television groductian

Satellite Media Limited o New 2ealand (12] 7_I: 50,095:;—— Television production\r‘\i\&
Seven Selections Limited England & Wales (1) *27.02% Television production

Seven Stories Limited England & Wales (1) *27 02% Television preduction

Silvervan Productions Limited England & Wales {14) *10.0% Television production

Stery Films [Lizzie) Limited —T England & Wales (1) *32.43% Television production

Story fitms Ltd England & Wales (1) *32.43% Tetevision produclion

Story Films {Canoe Man} Limited England & Wales (1) *32.43% Telewision proguction ]
Story Filmns {Black Cab) Limited England & Wales {1) *32.43% Television production

Story Films (Qtto) Limited England & Wales (1] *32.43% Television production

Story Fitmns {The Hunted) Limited England & Wales (1) *32.43% Television praduction

3 Rock Productipns Limited ﬁ‘\a‘fn?and £ Wales [1) —’:ZS: Televisian production ]
Build Your Qwn Films Limited England & Wales (1} *49.0% Television production
Formation Games Studio Ltd - England & Wales (18) *2.69% Game and Emertainr;'.enl Studio S

—_
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)

15 Investments (continued)

Subsidiary undertakings

The details of the subsidiaries held by the Group as at 31 December 2022 are set out below. All companies are mncluded in the
consplidated financial statements and the full information will be annexed to the company’s next annuakreturn, The Directors believe

that the carrying value of the iavestments is supported by their underiying net assets.

Shares held by an intermediate holding campany are indicated with an asterisk {*).

Country of Voting
Name of Company incorparation rights % Nature of business
141 productions {Ouch} Limited England & Wales {1} *100% Television production
_3_DRG Limited England & Wales (1} *100% Television distrihution
Adamaarku Productions Limited England & Wales {1} *80.01% Television praduction
Alchemy TV Distribution Limited England & Wales (1} *100% Television production
Alexander Tailfeather Limited England & Wales (1} *S0.0% Television production
Allzmedia Director 2 Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Sub-holding company
All3Media Director timited England & Wales {1} 100% Sub-holding caompany
All3Media Finance Limited England & Wales (1} *100% Sub-holding company
All3Media Holdings Limited England & Wales (1} 100% Sub-holding tompany
AllaMedia International Limited England & Wales (1) 100% Television distribution
Allapedia Limited England & Wales (1} *100% Sub-holding company
AllaMedia Clip Sales Limited England & Wales {1} *100% Television production and distribution
All3Media Rights Limited (Formerly England & Wales (1} *100% Telev'sion production and distribution
Newco Productions Limited)
AllaMedia USA Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Sub-holding company
American Animal Pictures Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
An Awlully Big Praduction Company England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Limited
Angela Black Productions Ltd England & Wales (1) *80.01% Telewision producton
First Floor Fidms Limited (prev. Angelica England & Wales {1j *100% Telewisian proguction and distribution
Films Limited)
Annika Stranded Finance Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Financing vehicle
Apprentice Witch Productions Limited England & Wales {1} *100% Television production
Assemnbly Film & Television Limited England & Wales {1) 100% Te'evision production
Atrium TV Limited England & Wales {1) *100% Television production
Arctic Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
England & Wales {1} *30.0% Television production and distributicn

&trura Madia Warldwide UK Limited
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

15. Investments {continuad)

Subsidiary undertakings (continued}

Shares held by an intermediate holding company are indicated with an asterisk (*)

Country of Voling

Name of Company incarporation rights % Nature of business

Awakering Praduction Limited England & Wales {1} *80.01% Television production

Back to Life 2 Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *80.01% Television production

Bentley Productions Limited Englang & Wales |1) 100% Television production

Betty TV Limited England & Wales (1} *100% Television praduction and distribution

8t Production Lid Engiland & Wales (1} *100% Television production

Barn Free Productions Limited England & Wales (1} *100% Teleyision praduction

Brookside Praductions Limited England & Wales (1} “100% Teleyision production

Bunch Productions Limited £ngland & Wales (1} *100% Television production
Z;.szxson Limited T England & Wa'l;s {1} . *100% Television distribution o

CA2 Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
_CA3 Prodnciior.u—Li_r’nilEd‘_ﬁ_- England & wales {1) 77’@ 7Teiev1s1on producticn

CHA Productions Lid England & Wales (1) *100% Television production

Champion TV Finance Ltd England & Wales (1) *100% Telewvision productian

Company Films Limited England & Wales (1) 100% Television preductian

Company Pictures Limited England & Wales (1} 100% Televisian production

Company Productions {Douglas) Lim ted Engiand & wWales (1) 100% Television production

Company Productions {North] Limted England B Walas (1) 100% Television production

Company Productions Limited England & Wales (1} 100% Television production

E?;\Tt‘;:nv Television (Northern Ireland) England & Wales (1} 100% Televiston production

Company Television Limited England & Wales (1) 100% Television groduttion

CTM 3 Preductions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production;n—ddlstribunon N

CTM 4 Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production and distribution
- - o - b ——— ——

CTM 5 Proguctions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production and distribution

CTM 6 Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production and distribution

w7 Productin;irmiled ] England &;a\les {1} *100% Television praduction and distribution

CT™ 8 Productions Limited Enpland & Wales (1} *100% Television production and distribution

CTM 9 Producticns Limited England & Wales (1} *100% Televisien producticn and distribution




DLG Acguistions Limited
Report and financial statements for the year to 31 December 2022

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

15.  Investments (continuad)

Subsidiary undertakings {continued)

Shares held by an intermediate holding company are ind-cated with an asterisk [*).

Country of Voting
Name of Company incarporation rights % Mature of business
CTM 10 Productions Limited England & Wales {1) *100% Television production and distribution
CTM 11 Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production and distribution
CTM 12 Productions Limited England & Wales {1) *100% Television production and distribution
CTM Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production and distribution
OALG Productions Limited England & wales (1) *“100% Television productian
Dalg 2 Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television producticn
Celta Productions Limited Engiand & Wales (1} *100% Television production
Digital Rights Group Limited England & Wales (1} 100% Television distribution
DirtQiuake Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
DLG Financing 1 Limited England & Wales (1) 100% Sub-holding company
DLG Financing 2 Limited England & Wales (1) 100% Sub-holding company
Dream Horse Films Limited England & Wales (1) *H0% Television production
DRG America Limited England & Wales {1) *100% TFelevision distribution
Drive Thraugh Productions Ltd England & Wales {1) *100% Television production
Eight Bridges Froductions Limited England & Wales (1) *80.01% Television production
Electric Talent Limited England & Wales (1) 100% Television production
fear Falls Production Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
First Loop Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Gently Productions Limited England & Wales (1} *100% Television production
Grange Hill Productions Limited England & Wales (1] *50.0% Television production
Hit Networks Lid England & Wales {1} *730% SYO0 and podcast distribution
1 D Distribution Limited England & wales (1} *100% Television distribution
tmpaoster Pictures Limited England & Wales (1} *100% Television production
informer Productions Limited England & wWales (1} *100% Television production and distribution
Invasion Pictures Ltd England & Wales (1} *60% Television production
1R2 Ltd England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
La Plante Productions Limited England & Wales (1} *100% Television production
Liar Two Productions Limited England & Wales (1} *80.01% Television production
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Notes 10 the financial statements (continued)
15. Investments (continued)

Subsidiary undartakings [contin ued)

Shares held by an in{ermediate hoiding

pany are indicated with an asterisk (*}.

N Country of Voting
Name of Company incorporation rights % Nature of Business
Lime Entertainment Limited England & Wales [1) *100% Television production
Lime Pictures {Drama ASC) timited €ngland & wales (1) *100% Television production
Lime Pictures {HH) Limited €ngland & Wales (1) *100% Television production
time Pictures (Mursery] Limited England & Wales (1} *100% Television production
{ime Pictures Group Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television produttion
Lime Pictures Limited England & Wales (1) 100% Television praduction
Lion Cubs Limited England & Wales {1} *100% Television production
tion Cubs 2 Limited England & wales (1} *100% Television production
Lion Drama Limited England & Wales {1) *100% Television production
Lion Films Limited England & Wales (1) +100% Television praduction
Lion Media Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Lion Television Limited England & Wales (1) 100% Television production
Lion Television North Limited England & Wales (1} *100% Television production
Little Dot Studios Limued England & Wales [1) 100% Multi-platform content provider
Living Planet Productions Limited England & Wales {1) *100% Television production
Manor Production Services Limted England & Wales (1) 100.0% Television production
Marlais Productions Limited England & Wales {1} *30.01% Television praductian
Maverick Og.eralion Quch Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Tetevision production
Maverick Television Limited England & Wales (1) 100% Tefevisien preduction
Mears Studios {Holgings) Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production and distrivution
Mersey Acquisitions Uimited €ngland & Wales (1} 100% Television production
Mersey P L Limited England & Wales (1) 100.0% Television produgtion
Merton Books Limited Enpland B Wales (1) *100.0% Television production
Midsomer Murders 521 Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Midsomer Murders 522 Limted England & Wales (1] *100% Television production
Midsomer Murders 523 Limited England & wales {1} *100% Television production
Midsomer Murders 524 Limited England & Wales {1} *100% Television production
Moneda Productions Limited England & Wales {1} 10G% Television praduction
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1§, Investwmicnts {wontinued)

ubsidiary undertakings (continued

Shares held by an intermediate holding company are indicated with an asterisk {*).

Country of Voting

Name of Company incorporation rights % Nature of business

MUD Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production

Neal Street Media Limited England & Wales (1) *50.1% Television production and distribution
:f::tz;'e“ Productions (Eroadway) England & Wales (1} | *100% Television production and distribution
Neaf Street Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production and distribution
New Pictures Limited England & wales [1} 100% Television production and distribution
Nine Streets Productians Limited England & Wales (1) *80.01% Telgvision production

North One Television Limited England & wales (1) 100% Television production

NPX Productions Limited England & Wales {1) *100% Television production

N5M Empire 1td England & Wales (1) *50.1% Television production

NSM The Red Zone Ltd England & Wales (1) *S0.1% Television praduction and distribution
Objective Media Group Limited England & Wales (1) 100% Televislon Production

OF Productions [Buds) Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Teievision Production

OF Productions (Gald) Limited England & Wales {1) *100% Television Production

OF Productions (Toast) timited England & wales (1) *10C% Television production

OF Productions {Us) Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television Production

One Potato Two Potato Limited England & Wales {1) *100% Television producticn and distnibution
Optornen Television Limited England & Wales {1) 100.0% Television production

Penguin Fiims Limited England & Wales [1) *100% Television production

Penny Dreadful Television Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production and distribution
Perfect Planet Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *10C% Television producticn

Pet Moon Productions Limited England & wales (1) *100% Television production

Pet Moon Televisian Limited Enpland & Wales (1) 100% Television productioa

Palar Bear Films Limited England & wales (1) *100% Television production

Portman Acquisitions Limited England & wales {1} *100% Television distribution

Poitman Entertainment Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television distribution

Portman Film and Television Limited England & wales {1) *100% Television distribution

Portman Media Assets Limited Enpland & Wales [1) *100% Television distribution
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15.  Investments {cantinued)

Subsidiary undestakings fcontinued)

Shares held by an intermediate holding company are indicated with an asterisk {*}.

Country of Voting 1

Name of Company incorporation rights % Nature of business
Portman Media Assets {No. 2) Lirnited England & Waleas (1) *100% Television distribution
Portman Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television grodugtion

finforest Finance Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Financing vehicle
Ravenscourt Sarvices Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Raw Factual Limited England & Wales (1] *52% Television production
Raw Scnpted Limited ] England & Wales {1} *60% Television production
Raw TV Limited England & Wales (1} *100% Television production and distribution
Raw 1990 Limited England & Wates (1) *100% Television production and distribution
Raw California Limited Engiand & Wales {1} *100% Television production and distribution
Red Rooster Television Limited England & Wales (1} 100% Television production
Requiem Productions timited England & Wales (1) *100% Television progduction
Residual)3 Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Afdministrative vehicle
Ridley Productions Lirited England & Walkes {1} *100% Televisian production
Rock Ridge Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Televisian production
Saigon Praductions Limited England & Wales {1} *100% Television production
Serengeti Produttions Limiled England & wales (1} *89.993 Television production
Shakespeare Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production and distribution
Sitverback Films Limited ):ngland & Wales (1) 100% Television preduction and distribution
SBF Features Limited T England & Wales (1) *100% Television produttion and distribution
SBF Nat Productions Limitad England & Wales {1) *100% Television production and distribution
Sealion Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television predugtion and distribution
Srateside Productions Limited England & Wales {1} *100% Televion production and distribution
Studio Lambert Associates Limited England & Wales (1) 100% Televsion production and distribution
Studio Lambert Finance Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production and distribution
Studio Lambert Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production and distribution
Studio Lambert Media Limited England & Wales (1) *501% Television production and distribution
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15.  Investments {continued)

Subsidiary undertakings (continued}]

Shares held by an intermad;ate helding company are indicated with an asterisk {*).

Country of Voting
Narmne of Company incorporation rights % Nature of business
gg::i:?—,::::u:i:\?;;i;mIEd {previously. England & Wales (1) *50.1% Television productran and distribution
The Feed Production Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
I‘:::}:.;rdne Fictures Holding Company England & Wates (1) £100% Television production
The Mersey Music Company Limited England B Wales [1) *100% Television production
The Mersey Television Company Limited England & Wales (1) *50.0% Television production
The Mersey Television Group Limited England & Wales (1) *50.0% Television praduction
Iil::i::;rsev Televislon Training Company England & Wales (1) *50.0% Television production
The Nest Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Televistan production
The Tourist Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *80.01% Television production
This is Your Life Experience Limited England & Wales {1} *100% Television production
TLS1 productions Limited England & Wales (1} *100% Television production
TSP2 Producticns Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Two Brathers Pictures Limited England & wales (1) *30.01% Television production and distribution
Bancroft Gald Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *80.01% Television production and distribution
Boat Story Prouctions Limited England & Wales (1) *80.01% Television productian and distribution
Unstoppakle Film and Television Limited England & Wales {1} *91% Television production
Van der Valk S1 Limited England & Wales {1) *100% Television production
Van der Valk 52 Limited England & wWales (1) *100% Television production
Van Der Valk 53 Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Werewaorld Praductions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Telavision production
West Road Pictures Limited England & Wales (1) 100% Television production and distribution
Westbridge Productions Limited England & Wales {1) *100% ‘Television production
Wild Britain Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Wild Chase Productions Limited England & Wales {1) *100% Television production
Wild West Finance Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television distribution
Wing Limited England & Wales (1} *5l% Crigital production services
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15.  Investments {continued)
Subsidiary undertakings (continued]

Shares held by an intermediate holding company are indicated with ao asterisk {*)

Country of Voting
Name of Campany incorporation rights % Nature of business
Wings Acquisition Company Limited England & Wales (1) 100.0% Sub-holding company
Witchery Pictures Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television praduction and gistributian
2eal Entertainment Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Zero Chift Productions Limited Englang & Wales (1} *100% Television production
The Tourist Australia Productions Pty Ltd | Australia (7} *80.01% Televlsion production ]
Alt3Media Deutschland GmbH Germany {3} *100% Tefevision production
P S
filmpoal entertainmeat Gmbi Germany (5} *93.5% Television productian
filmpool fiction GmbH Germany (19} *93.5% Television production
filmpool media entertainment GmbH Austria {6} *93,5% Telavision produttion
| Care Producties BY Netherlands {11) 752.0% Television production
:E:g:zﬁi;f)eigium B.V. (formerty 10TV Belgium (17} *100% Television production
10TV Cumulus BY Netherfands (11) *100% Television production
DTV Fitm and Video Productions BY Netberlands [11) *100% Television producticn
DTV Fusion BV Netherlands [11) " 100% Television production
DTV Live 360 BY Netherlands {11) *100% Television production
IDTV Media Graup BV Netherlands (11) *100% Televiston production
ZI:;ME' Myself & Eye Entertainment Germany {4) *53.5% Television production
N
MME Movement AG Germany {3) *93.57% Telavision production
I
Red Forest TV BV Metherlands {11) *100% Television production
South & Browse GmbH Germany {20} *“100% Te evision production and distributian
Tower Productions GmbH Germany [4) *100.0% Te'evision production
TFS - The Fiction Syndicate GmbH Germany (21} *50.1% Television production
Magic Connection GmbH Germany (S) *50.1% Television producticn
Tulig Holdings BV Metherlands (11} *100% Sub-holding company
AM3Media Deytschland Fiction GmbH Germany [22) *100% Television produgtion
POS Video & Television B.V. Netherlands (11} *100% Television production and distribution
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15. Investments (continued)

Subsidiary undertakings [continued)

Shares held by an intermediate holding company are indicated with an asterisk (*).

Country of Voting
Name of Company incorporation rights % pature of business
AH3Media America, LLC USA (2} *100% Television production and distributinn
All3Media International America, LLC USA (2) *100% Television production and distribution
All3Media USA, Inc. USA {2) *100% Sut-holding company
Beath Life Studios, LLC USA (2} *100% Television production and distribution
Beak Street Studio Rentals Inc, USA 2} “100% Television production and distribution
Bright Road Prgductions, inc. USA {2} *100% Television production and distribution
Bright Spot Content, LLC UsSA (2) *100% Television production and distribution
Carnaby Servites, Inc. USA (2} *100% Television production and distribution
Clack Productions, LLC USA (2) *100% Television production and distribution
DLG USA Financing. LLC USA {2) 100% Sub-holding company
Dusty Rose Pictures, LLC UsA (2} *100% Television production and distribution
DRG Arnerica LLC USA (8} *100% Telavision distribution
Island TV, LLC UsA {2) *100% Television production and distribution
Lion Television, LLC LSA {2} *100% Television production and distribution
Little Dot Studios, LLC USA {2} “100% Muiti-platfarm content provider
Maverick Television Ine. USA {2} *100% Television production and distribution
Music to Air, Inc USA {2) *100% Television production and distribution
Neal Street Productions USA, Inc. USA {16} *100% Television production and distribution
Neon Productions LLC USA(2) *100% Televisian production and distribution
Narth One Televisian USA, ine. UsA {2} *100% Television production and distribution
Objective Preductions US, Inc. USA (2) *100% Television production and distribution
Optomen Productions, LLC UsA (2) *100% Television production and distribution
One Potato, Two Potato LLC USA (2) *100% Television production and distribution
Weddeli Sea Pictures LLC UsA{2) *100% Television production and distribution
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15. Invesiments {continued)

Subsdiary undertakings (continued)

Shares held by an intermediate holding company are indicated with an asterisk {*}.

Country of Voting

Name of Company incorporation rights % Nature of business

Palm Tree Pictures, LLC Usa (2) *100% Television production and distribution

Raw, lnc. USA {2} “200% Television production and distribution

Striped Zebra Productions, fnc. UsA [2) *100% Television production and distribution

Studio Lambert Media, Inc USA (2] *50.1% Television production and distribution

Studio Lambert Associates USA, Inc. USA (2} =100% Television productian and distribution

The Hewst, LLC UsA (2) *100% Television production

The Writa Types, Inc. UsA {2) *100% Television production and distribution
-

Vectar Praductions LL.C USA {2} *100% Multi-platform cantent provider

Woodman Park Productions, LLC UsA (2) f *100% Television production and distribution
| - - —, e - .

|| ia ! i 1 Asia Pacific Pte.

Al3Media international Asia PacificPte. | g0 bore (10) *100% Tetevision disteibution

Limited

Little Dot Studios {Asia) Pte. Ltd Singapore (1Q) *100% Multi-platform centent provider

Burberry Entertainment Pty Limited Australa (13) *160% Talevision production

Brokenwood Productions Limited New Zealand (12) *100% Television production

Maggie Limited New Zealand [12} ' 100% Television production

Pam's Petling Zoo Limited New Zealand {12} *103% Television production

S.uullh Facific Pictures investments New Zealhnd (12) *100% Sub-holding company

Limited
O

Seuth Pacific Pictures Limited New Zealand (11) *100% Television peoduction

South Pacific Pictures Praductions New Zealand {12} *100% Television production

Limited

South Pac fic Pictures Serials Limited New Zealand [12) *100% Television production

Tatau Productions Limited New Zealand (12} *100% Television production

Weld Productions Lmited New Zealand {12} *100% Televisian production

Golden Relsiever Family Limited rNew Zealand {12} *100% Telewsion production
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15. Investments [continued)

Subsidiary undertakings [continued)

Registerad Addrass Key

(1) Berkshire House, 168 - 173 High Halborn, London, WC1V 7AA, United Kingdom

{2) G060 Center Crive, 4th Flaor, Las Angeles CA 90045, United States

(3)  Atelierstrasse 12, 81671, Munich, Germany

{4} Gotzkowskystr.20-21, 10555, Berlin, Germany

{5} Kalscheurener Str.91, 50354 Hiirth, Germany

{6} Untere Donaustr. 1315, A - 1020, Wien, Austria

{7 7779 Argyle Street, Fritzroy, VIC 3065, Melborne. Austra’ia

(8) C/O GILDEA, 122 €. 42ND 5T 5TE 4300, New York, USA

(9) Poynders End, Preston, Hitchin, England, 564 7RX

(10) 20 Robinson Road, #02-00, Singapore 068898

(11)  Overschiestraat 176, 1062XK, Amsterdam, Netherlands

{12) & Tolich Place, Henderson, Auckland, New Zealand

{13)  Kew, Victoriz 3101, Australia

{14) 78 Mili Lane, London, Unitied Gngon, NWG 1)2

{15)  suite 275, 10 Albert Avenue, Broadbeach QLD 4218, Australia

{16) 50 Rackefeler Plaza, dth Flaor, New York, USA

{17} Reedik 10, 1785 Merchtem, Belgium

{18) 6366, Fifth Floor, Suite 23 Hatton Garden, London, England, ECIN 8L

{19) Hohenzollernring 22-24, 50672 Kéln, Germany

(20) FloRergasse 2, 81369 Munchen, Germany

(21) Hildeboldplatz 15 -17, 50672 Koin, Germany

(22) Alt Moabit 62, 10555 Berlin, Germany

15. Inventaries
Group

Work in progress

No mventaries are held by the Parent Company {2021: £nil)

2022 2021

£000 £'000
267,402 175,774
267,402 175,774

o
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Nates to the financial statements {continued}

17. Trade and other receivables: due within one ygar

Group Company

2021 2021 2012 2021
£000 £'000 £'000 £/000
Trade receivabes 92,347 66,127 - -

Other recevables 108,562 89,503 4,397
Prepayments and accrued income 158,742 134 460 - 21
Amounts owed by Group undertakings - - 65,276 395,498
Secil security and other laxes 1,826 - 126 76
361,476 250,090 69,799 355,545

Amounts owed by Group undertakings mcludad in the Company above comprse a number of intercompany loans of £65,276,000
{2021 £35,443,000) and an intercompany loan was repaid in June 2022 of Eni*(2021: E360,055.000), all of which are unsecured,

nterest free and repayable on demand.

within ather receivables in Group above 15 £1,069,000 (2021: £nJ) relat ng to dervatee financal instruments. Wah.n other

receivables in the Company above is £4,339,000(2021: £nil} relat g to derivative financalmstruments

18. Trade and other receivables: due after more than one year

Group Company

2022 2021 2022 2021
£'000 £°000 £'000 £'000

Trade recevables - - -
Prepayments and acerued intome 1,873 734 - -
Amounts owed by Group undertakings - - 26,360 35,945
QOther receivabies 234 1,165 734 1,165
2,107 1,949 26,594 37,110

Amounts pwed by Group undertakings inciuded in the Company above compnise an intercompany loan of £26,360.000 (2021
£35,945,000) repayable between May 2025 and May 2026 following the settlement of all putstanding loan amounts due under the
Seqior Faciities Agreement and the Second Lien Facilities Agreement with Navonal Westminster Bank Plc and Uiberty Global
Incorporated Limited dated 24 May 2019 and 31 May 2019 respectively . Interest is payable on these loans at a rate of between

EURIBOR + 3 5% and SONIA + B.00% per annum,

Other recervables 1n Group and Company above 1s £234,000 (2021. £1,165,000) relating to derivative financial instruments.
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19, Borrowings

Unsecured barrowing at amortised cost
Amounts owed to parent undertakings

Secured borrowing at amortised cost
8ank loans
Deferred financing fees

Total Borrowings
Amaounts due for settlement:

Within 12 months or on demand
Current borrowings total

In mare than ong year but not more than two years

In more than two years but not more than five
years

In more than five years

Noen-current barrowings total

Total Borrowings

Company
Analysis of borrowings by currency:

31 December 2022

Amoaunis owed 1o parent undertakings
Bank laans

Deferred inancing fees

31 December 2021

Amoumts owed to parent undertakings
Bank loans

Deferred financing fees

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
£'000 £000 £'000 £000
292,980 221,874 292,980 221,874
292,980 221,874 292,980 221,874
851,779 491,374 465,060 445,636
{4,121) {5,328) {a,121) {5.328)
547,658 486,045 460,939 441,308
840,638 707,920 753,919 663,182
93,590 71,962 31,293 31,293
93,590 71,962 31,293 31,293
11,252 2,863 (1,206} {1,206)
368,816 337,221 356,852 337,221
366,980 295,874 366,980 295,874
747,048 635,958 722,626 631,889
840,638 707,920 753,919 663,182
Sterling Euros Total
£000 £°000 £'000

292,930 - 292,980

106,499 358,561 465,060

(4,121) - {4,121)

395,358 358,551 753,919

221,874 - 221,874

106,500 340,136 446,636

{5,328} {5,328}

323,046 340,136 663,182
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

19. Boarrowings {continued)

Group
Analysis of borrow! by currency:
Sterling US Dollars Euros NZ Dollars  AUS Callars Tota!
£000 £°000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'C00
31 December 2022
Amounts owed ta garent undertakings 252 980 - - - - 292 930
Bank loans 190,740 358,561 2,478 - 551,779
Deferred financng fees {4,121} - {4,121}
479,599 - 358,561 2478 - 840,638
31 December 2021
Amounts owaed to parent undertakings 221,874 - « 221,814
Bank loans 139,546 2,166 340,136 9,526 451,374
Deferred financing fees {5,328) - - (5,328)
356,092 2,166 340,136 9,526 707,220
The principal features of the Group and Company’s borrowings are as follows:
(0] Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand. The avera g effective interest rare an bank overdrafts approximates 3.50%

above the Bank of England base rate per annum, minmum 0%.

() The Group has four principal bank loans:
{a) a first hen loan of €405m The loan was taken out on 4 June 2019 The loan s secured by pledge over the company's
shares and intercompany receivables, the carrying amount of which s shown in nete 19 The loan carries an interest
rate at 3.5% above 6 month EURIBOR, minimum 0%.
{b) aloan of £74m. The 1oan was taken out on 4 June 2019 The koan is secured by piedge over the Company’s shares
and intercompany rece vables, the carrying amount of which s shown in note 19. The loan carries an Interest rate at

§.00% above 6 month SONIA, mnimum Q%.

{c) production laans totaling £51.8m {2023:£31.3m),

{d} a loan for £11.5m is repayable no later than 31 December 2023 at an interest rate of 3.35% above the Bank of

England Base Rate. The production loan is secured against the assets of the specific production.

{m) Amounts repayab e to parent undertakings caery interest of 5.99% per annum charged on the outstanding loan balances

Shareholder loans at 31 December 2022 total ed £252,980,000 compnised of £276,874,000 principal and £16,106,000

accrued nterest {2021.£209,454,000 principa: and £12,420,000 interest). mterest is compounded aanually.

The weighted average intecest rates paid durng the year were as follows.

8ank overdrafts
Amounts owed to parent undertakings
Bank loans

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021

% %

6.93 3.7%

5.99 5.9%

6.99 4.23

5B
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
2U. Utterred tax

The following are the major deferred tax habilities and assets recognised by the Grouwp and movements thereon during the current
and prior reporting year

At Credit / At

1 January Acquisitions {charge) to Exchange 31 December

2022 f disposals profit or lass differences 2022

£'000 £/000 £°000 £'000 E'000

Intangible assets {3,582) (148} 610 49 {3,071)
‘Accelerated tax depreciation 4,421 186 {873} 73 3,807
IFRS 16 leases 535 {13) 27 33 582
Tax lo tses 8152 - 705 57 8,914
Revaluation of financial instruments 2,035 . [4,865) - {2,830)
Short term temporary differences 453 {25) {2,658) 198 (2,032}
Deferred tax asset 12,014 - {7,053) 410 5,370

Defesred tax asset wm the Company refates to the following:

At At

1 january Acquisitions Charge to Exchange 31 December

2022 / disposals profit or Joss differences 2022

£000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Hevaluation of financ @l instruments 2.035 - (4,865} - {2,830)
2,035 - {4,865} - {2,830)

Deferred tax assets and ‘bl igs are offset where the Group has a legally enforceable right to da 50, The following is the analysis of
the deferred tax ba-ances {after offset) for financial reporting purposes:

2022 2021

£900 £'000
Deferred tax habilites (note 24} {11,312) {4.431)
Deferred tax assets 16,682 16,445
5,370 12,014

Deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses for which no deferred tax assets have been recognised are attributable to
the foliowing:

2022 2021

£000 £'000

Unutilised tax losses 23,267 20,720
23,267 20,720
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21. Trade and other payables: due after mare than one year

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Accrugls and deferred neome 3,462 2,691 . -
Other payables 59,237 33.815 17,946 6,231
52,699 36,506 17,946 6,231

included within other payables in Group above is £42 409,000 (2021: £27,702,0C0) relatad te put and ¢all options 3nd £16,829,000

{2021. £6,111,000) related to deferred consideration

Included within other payables in the Company above is £1,117,000 (2021: £120,000) related to put and call oplion liatnlities and

£16,829000 (2021: £6,111 000} related to deferred consderation.

22. Trade and other payables: due within ane year

Group Company

2022 2021 2022 2021
£'000 £'000 £'000 E£'000

Trade payables 107,976 85933 - -
Amounts owed to Group undertakings - 35,3934 337,61%
Other payables 35,945 78 875 7,146 49,922

Saocial securty and other taxes 5,229 5.541 - -
Accruak and deferred income 387,562 314,396 2,048 2,702
Bank overdrafts - - 96,472 68,492
536,712 484,745 141,600 458,731

Inc uded within other payables in Group and Company above s £ni {2021 £8,112,000) relat ng to derivative financial instruments.
inciuded within other payables in Group above s £8,115 000 [2021: £41,570,000} relating to put and call ogtion liabilities and
£1,666,000 {2021 £13 B32,000) related to deferred consijeration, Included in ather payables in the Company s £3,000,000 {2021:
£21 570,000} refat ng to put and call option liabil 'es and £780,000 (2021: £13,409,000) refated to deferred consideration,

Amounts owed to Group undertakings of £35,934,000 {2021: £337,615,000} are repayable within a year.

23, Qbligations under keases and hire purchase contract

Totalfuture commtments under noncancellable operating leases, for the Group, are as follows -

Land and buildings Other

2022 2021 2022 2021
£°000 £°000 £'000 £000

Coperating leases payable:
Within one year 135 a0 303 248
In two to five years - - . .
In over five years . R
135 30 303 248

There are no obligations under cperating leases i the Company as 3 31 December 2022 or 31 December 2021.
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)

24. Provisions far liabilities

Deferred 1axation {note 20}
Dilapidatlon provis ons
Other provisions

There are no prowvisions for liabilities in the Company as at 31 Decernber 2022 or 31 December 2021,

25. Called-up share capital

Group and Company

ksued ond fully paid:

119,240 {31 December 2021 119,240} ordinary A shares of £0 01 each

119,240 (31 December 2021: 119,240} ord mary B shares of F0.01 each
16,802 (31 December 2021: 16,802] ordinary shares of £0 01 each

2022 2021
£000 £000
11,312 4,431
1,044 842
. 538
12,356 5,861
2022 2021

£ £
1,152 1,192
1,192 1,192
168 168
2,552 2,552
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Report and financlai statements for the year to 31 December 2022

Notes ta the financial statements (continued)

26. Reconciliation of movements in resarves

Company
Called-up Share {Accumulated Total
share capital premium losses) / equity
£'000 account retained £'000
£'000 earnings
£000
At 1 January 2021 3 218,478 1152,813) BS 668
Comprehensive (loss)/income!
- Profit for the financial year 203 203
Total comprehensive loss - 203 03
Share premium reduction™ - (218,477} 218,477 -
Tronsocthions with owners
-Dividends to shareholders - (12,719} (12,719)
Total transactions with owners (12,719} {12,719)
At 31 Becember 2021 3 3 53,148 53,152
At 1 January 2022 3 1 53,148 £3,152
Comprehensive income:
- Profit for the financial year - - 7,005 7,005
-Other reserves mavement « - 2,500 2,500
Total comprehensive inceme - - 5,505 9,505
3 i 62,653 62,657
Transactions with owners:
- Dividends ta skarehaolders B . - - - -
Tetal transactions with owners - - - -
At 31 December 2022 3 1 FLES3 62,657
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26. Reconciliation of movements in reserves [continued)

Group
Tatal equity
Called-up Share attributable Nan-
share premium  Accumufated toowners of  controlling Total
capital account losses the Company interest equity
£000 £'000 £000 E'00D £'000 £'000
At 1 January 2021 3 218,478 (313,811) {95,330) 2,216 {93,114)
Comprehenswe flass)fincome
-{Loss)/Profit for the financial year - - (18,419} (18,419) 175 {18,244}
Other comprehensive income/{loss).
- Currency translat on differences - - 2,437 2,437 {157) 2,280
Total comprehensive {loss)/income - - (15,982} {15,982} 18 {15,964}
Share premium reduction” . {218,477} 218,477 - B N
Transoctions with owners:
Dividends to shareholders - {12,719) {12,719) - {12,719)
- Dividends 10 subsidiaries’ non-cantrolling - - {9,389} (5,389) - (9,389)
interests I
Total transactions with owners - - {22,108} (22,108) - {22,108)
At 31 December 2021 3 1 {133,424} (133,420) 2,234 {131,186}
At 1 January 2022 E] 1 {133,424) {133,420) 2,1 {131,186}
Comprehensive (loss)/income:
-{Loss)/prafit for the financial year - - [39,172) {39,172} 20 {29,152}
Other comprehensive income/{loss):
-Currency translation differences - - {1,116) {1,116) 36 {1,030}
Tota® romprehensive {loss)fincome - - {40,288) {a0,288} 106 (30,182)
Share premium reduction . - . - . B
Tronsactions with owners:
- Dividends to shareho ders . - - - - -
- Dividends to subs'diaries’ non-cantrolling - - {9,4595) {9,459) - (9,459}
interests
Total transactions w th owners - - {3,459) (9,459) - (9,459)
At 31 December 2022 3 1 {183,171) (183,167) 2,340 (180,827)
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27. Notes to the cash flow statement

Group
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
£000 £000
Loss for the year {39,152) (18,244)
Adustments for:
Share of lo s of associates 88 219
Share of loss of jo nt ventures 120 {802)
Finance income (15,088} {21,933)
Finance costs £4,978 65,015
Income tax charge/ (credit) 9,425 1,299
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 5,295 5,187
Depreciation of right of use assets 10,247 10,542
Amortisation of intangible assets 6,394 9,944
Lo s un disposal of property, plant and equipment (74} s)
Operating cash fiows before movemaents in working capital 62,333 51,222
{ncrease)/decrease in nventones {50,B89) 13,964
{ Increase)/decrease in receivables {64,248) {40,008}
n¢rease in payables 117,127 43,294
Cash generated from operations 64,323 68,472
Company
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
£'000 £'000
Profit for the year 2,005 203
Adyustments for:
Finance costs 25,605 19,395
Income tax charge ) 4,366 2,243
Dividends received {61,689) {41,533
impairment of non current assets 10,381 3,104
Operating cash flows befare movements in working cap ftai {13,8132) {16,584)
fincrease)/Oecrea s& n rege vables [138) 76
Increase 1n payablies 595 10,928
Cash used in operatiors [13,375) [5,580)
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
1. Notes tothe cash flow statement {continued)

Lash and cash equivalents

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
£7000 E'000 £°000 £'000
Cash and cash equivalents 81,641 82,793 184,638 140,804
Bank overdrafis (Included within payables} - - (96,472) (68,492}
Net ¢ash and cash equivalents 81,641 82,793 8,166 72,312

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts. The carrying amount of these assets is approximately equal to their fair value Cash and cash
equivalents at the end of the reporting year as shown in the statement of cash Flows can be veconciled to the related items .n the

balance sheet position as shown above.

Inciuded m cash and cash equivalents 15 £35,955,336 [2021: £34,869,946) held in designated segregated production bank accounts
for televis'on companies that have commissoned programmes on their behalf. These funds are under the effective management
and contro| of the Group under the terms of the ¢ontracts with the television companias.

Analysis of changes in net dept
At Other At
1 January Exchange non-cash 31 December
2022 Cash ftow mavements movaments 2022
E'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
Group
Cash and cash equwvalents 82,793 (3.0753) 1,923 - 81,641
Loans from related parties {221,874) {55,000) - 116,106} {292,980}
Bank leans due within 1 year (73,168) (20.785) (976) - {94,929)
Bank loans due in more than 1 year {418,206) (20.581) {18,425} - (457,212)
Deferred fmancing fees within 1 year 1,206 - - - 1,206
Deferred financing fees in more than 1year 4,121 - {1,206) 2,915
Net debt [625,128) (99,441} (17,478} {12,312) (759,359)
Company
Cash and cash equ valents 72.312 15.856 3] 88,166
Loans from eelated parties (221,874} {55.000} - (16,106} [292.980)
Bank loans due within 1 year (32,500} - + {32,500}
Bank leans due \n mere than 1 year {414,136} {18,425) {432,561)
Deferred financ ng fees within 1 year 1.206 - - - 1,206
Deferred financing fees in more than 1 year 4.121 - {1,206) 2,915
Net debt (590,871) {39,144) {18,427) (17,312} [665,754)
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)

28. Contingent liabilities
Loss absorption agreemen

DLG Acquisitions and All3Medsa Deutschland GmbH, 2 100% subsidiary of DLG Acquisitions Limited, have a vo untary loss

absorption agreement in place such that any losses that arise in All3Media Deutschland GmbH are assumed by OLG Acquisitions
Limited. This agreement was m place for the years to 31 December 2015, 31 December 2016, 31 December 2017, 31 Oecember
2018, 31 December 2013, 3i December 2020, 31 December 2621 and 31 December 2022,

29. Financial instruments
Financial instruments by category - Group

Assets as per balance sheet

Assets at fair

Loans and vaiue through  Derivatives used
receivables profit ard loss for hedging Total
£°000 £000 £'000 £000
As ot 31 December 2022
Trade and other receivables 351,933 351,933
[excluding prepayments)
Derivative financial instruments 1,302 1,302
Cash and cash equivalents 81,641 - - 81,641
Total 433,574 1,302 - 434,876
As ot 31 December 2021
Trade and other receivables 263,929 263,929
{excluding prepayments)
Cash and cash equivaients 82,793 82,793
Total 346,722 346,722
Liabilities as per balance sheet
Liabilities at
fair value Derivatives Financial
through profit wsed for liabilities at
and loss hedging amartised cost Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
As at 31 December 2022
Borrowings (exclud ing finance fease liahiites) - {840,638) {840,638)
Lease liabihbes {49,914} {49,914}
Der wat v tmanoial instruments - -
Trade and other payables (excluding non financial labiities) B (599,328) {599,328}
Total . - (1,489,880} {1,989,580)
As at 31 December 2021
Borrow ngs {exc uding finance lease liabilities) {707,920) (707 520)
Lease liabitties - - {53,106} (53.106)
Derivatwe fnancial Instruments (6,947) (6,947}
Trade and cther payables {excluding non financial LabM ties) - {513,139) {513,139)
Tota! {6,947) - [1,274,165] {1,281,112)
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Report and financial statement s for the year to 31 December 2022
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

290 Finassial inatiworents {(Lominued)
Finangiat r - n

Assets as per balance sheet

As at 31 December 2022

Trade and other récewables
{excluding prepayraents)
Dervalive financial ynstruments

Cash and cash equivalents

Total

As at 31 December 2021
Trade and other recevables
{excludng prepayments)
Cash and cash equivalents

Total

Liabilities as per balance sheet

As gt 31 December 2022

Borrowings {excluding finance tease habilities)

Derivative financial instruments

Trade and other payables [excluding non-financial habilities)

Taotal

As at 31 December 2021

Borrowings {excluding finance lease | ab Ities)

Derivative financial instruments

Trade and other payables {excluding non-financia liabilities)

Total

Assets at fair Derivatives
Loans and  value through used far
receivables profit and loss hedging Totai
£'000 £'000 £000 E'000
o181 - 91,821
4,572 4,572
184,638 184,638
276,459 4,572 - 283,031
431,469 431,469
140,804 140,804
571,273 - - 572,273
Liabilities at
fair value Derlvatives Financial
through profit used far liabilities at
and loss hedging amaortised cost Total
£°000 £'000 £000 £000
- {850,291) (850,391}
(63,073) (63,073}
- - {913,464) (913,464)
- - (731,674) {731,674)
(6,947} {6.947)
- - {388,356) {388,356)
(6,547) - (1,120,030) (1,126,977)
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)

29. Financial instrumaents (continued)
Finangial instruments by maturit

The maturity of contracted cashflows associated with the Group's financial instruments are shown in the tables below The tables
have been drawn up based on discounted contractual cashfiows, showing the Group’s assets and labiit’es as stated in the balance

sheet.

Group

As gt 31 December 2022

Trade and other receivables {excluding prepayments)
Borrowings (excluding finance leases)

Lease Liabilities {IFRS 16)

Derivative financial instruments

Trade and other payables {excluding non-financial liabilities)

Total

As ot 31 December 2021

Trade and other recervables {excluding prepayments)
Borrowings {excluding finance leases)

Lease Liabilities ((FRS 16}

Derivatve financialinstruments

Trade and other payables {excluding non-financial ¥abilities)

Total

Company

As ot 31 Decemnber 2022

Trade and other receivables {excluding prepayments}
Borrawings lexclud ng finance teases)

Dervative financial Nstruments

Trade and other payables excluding nan financial habi! ties

Total

As at 31 December 2021

Trade and other rece vabies {exc'uding prepaymentsj
Borraw ings (excludng finance leasest

Rerivative financ al instruments

Trade and other payables exclud ng non financeliabilhities

Total

Later than ane

year and not
Nottater than  later than five Later than five

one yaar years years Total
E'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
338,510 13,423 . 351,933
{90,675 (382,983} (366,580) {840,638)
(10,043) {29,636} {10,235) {49,914)
234 1,068 - 1,302
(514,609) (82,183) {2,529) {599,327)
(276,583} {480,317) {373,744) {1,136,644)
235,753 27,676 459 263,928
(71,962) {340,085) {295,874) {707,921)
(10,335} (31,862] {10,505} (53,106i

- (6,947) - 6,947)
{436,355) {76,329} {454} {513,138)
(282,899) (427.547) {306,738) {1,017,184}
65,462 26,359 - 91,821
(31,294) {355 ,646) {463,451} (850,391)

- 4,572 - 4,572
{45,127) {16,529) (1,417) {63.073)
(10,959} {341,244) (464,868} (817,071)
906,779 344,690 431,469
{31 293} [336,015) (364,366} (731,674)
- {6.947) : (6,947}
1179,935) (208,422) (388,357)
{120,449) {210,694} (364,366) {695,509}

The gan recognsed in the year on derwatwve fmancial nstruments is dscbsed in note 8 (2021 1055 in note 9). Interest paid on
borrowings 15 disclosed in note 3 with further detai s declosed o note 19.

As at 31 December 2022 the Group held a provision against recoverabi:ty of trade recewvables of £6,685,000 (2021: £2,425,000). A
review performed on the Gioup’s financial assets conguded that no adjustment in respect of recoverability was required Ass
resut, the expected loss adjustment at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 is n'}, with no charge recognised In the years

then ended.
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30. Financial Risk Management

Forelgn Currency Risk
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk through its overseas operations, berrowing and through overseas trading. A cross

currency swap has been entered into in order to swap sterling debt inte US dollar debt, to be serviced by the Group’s earnings in
this currency, as detailed in note 31.

Exposure
The Group’'s exposure to foreign currency risk at the balance sheet date, exclud ng derivative financial instruments, 15 as follows:
usp EUR NZD
Group £000 £000 £000
As at 31 December 2022
Trade receivables 22,319 14,193 778
Cash and cash equivalents 49,642 {21,506} 3,679
Trade payables (12,380) {3,356) {52)
Bank loans {3.560} (358,561) .
As at 31 December 2021
Trade receivables 23,809 8,639 -
Cash and cash equivalents 4,963 14,389 5,673
Trade payables {7.,050) {2,249) {79}
Bank Joans {2,166) (340,136) -

Sansitivity

The sensitivity of the Group's profit and 1055 and equity, excluding translational risks and effects on derivative financial instruments,
are disclosed in the table below. Derivative financial instruments are excluded as the Group does not apply hedge accounting.
Details regarding the Group’s derivative financial instruments are given in note 31.

Increasef{decrease) in Profit & Loss and increase/(decrease) in aquity
31 December 31 December

2022 2021

£'000 £000
USD/GRP exchange rate: increase 5% (2,285) {299}
USD/GBP exchange rate: decrease 5% 2.339 314
EUR/GBP exchange rate: increase 5% 18,404 16,136
EUR/GBP exchange rate: decrease 5% {19,324} {16,942)
NZD/GBP exchange rate: decrease 5% {175} -
NZD/GBF exchange rate: decrease 5% 184 -
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30. Financial risk management {continued)

Interest Rate Risk

The Group has interest bearing assets and liabilities, inciuding cash and debt commutments. The Group holds interest rate swaps,

the detaits of which are disclosed in note 31.

Expasure

The Group's expasure to interest rate risk at the balance sheet date, excludmg derwatwe f nantial instruments, 15 as follows:

Group

As at 31 December 2022

Bank overdrafts

Amounts owed to parent undertakings
Bank loans

As at 31 December 202x

Bank overdrafts

Amaounts owed to parent undertakings
Bank lgansg

Sensitwity

Balance Intarast Rate
£'000 %

- £.93
292,980 5.99
5$51,140 6.99
- 375
221,874 5.99
491,374 4.33

The sensitivity of the Group’s profit and loss and equily to movements in inlerest rate arises mainly as a result of its borrowings.

The effect of a 1% movement in the underlying exchange rates on the Group's loss before tax are given in the table below. all
feures exclude the effects on derivative financial instruments as the Graup does not apply hedge accounting. Details regarding the

Group’s derivative financial instruments are given in nate 31.

Increase/(decrease] in Profit & Loss and increasef{decrease] in equity

Bank of England base interest rate: increase by 1 percentage point
Bank of England base interest rate: decrease by I percentage point
GEP SONJA: increase by 1 percentage point

GBP SONMA: decrease by 1 percentage point

& month EURIBOR: increase by 1 percentage point

6-month EURIBOR: decrease by 1 percentage point

Shareholder loan interest rate: increase by 1 percentage point
Shareholder loan interest rate: decrease by 1 percentage peint

Year ended
31 December

2022
£000

(155)
155
(1,303)
1,303
{3,586)
31,586
(2,920)
2,530

Year ended
31 December
2021

£000

(1,065)
505
{1,510}

{3,996}
a42
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A Nerivativg finoncial instruments
Current Non-turrent

portion partion Total

rou £'000 £'000 £°000
As at 31 December 2022
Liebilitres classifed os held for trading (*) '
Interest rate swaps 4,648 2.544 7.192
Cross currency swaps {309} (2.310) {2.619]
Basis Rate swaps - -
FX derivatives (3.270) - (3,270)
Total 1,069 234 1,303
As at 31 December 2021
Liabilities classified as held for trading (*)
Interest rate swaps (2,208} {2,072) {4,280)
Cross cursrency swaps (5.904) 3,237 (2,667)
Basis Rate swaps - - -
Total {8,112) 1,155 {6.947)

{*) These dervative financial instruments are not designated as hedges and sa are required to be classified as held-for-trading.

The full fair value of a derivative financial instrument is ¢lassified as a nen-current asset ar liability if the remaining maturity of the
rem i mare than 12 months and, as a current asset or 3ability, if the matur'ty of the hedged item is less than 12 months. The
dervathve financial instruments are not traded in an active market. but the fair values are based on quoted market prices,
broker/deater qguotations, or alternative pricing sources with reasonable levels of price transparency. Therefore, these are
measured at fair value in accordance with the IFRS 13 classification h-erarchy level 2.

Interest rate swaps
The national principal amounts of the outstanding knterest rate swap contracts at 31 December 2022 were £193,681,120 (2021

£204,175,527), made up of £74,000,000 and €155.000,000 {2021: of £74,000,000 and €£155,000,000) and have maturity dates in
2024 [2021:2024].

Al 31 December 2022, the fixed interest rates vary from 0.46% to 2 94% {2021: 0.46% to 2.94%}, and the main floating rates are
EURIBOR snd SON ‘A. Ga'ns and losses are recognised as fair value through profit or loss.

Cross currency rate swap
The Group holds four cross currency rate swap contracts at 31 December 2022, altof which mature 1n 2024 {2021: 2024)- All four

contracts have ariginal currency USD, with totalvalue of $278,519,000 {2021: $278,519,000) and swapped currency EUR. The total
notional f xed rate princ.pal amount at 31 December 2022 was $278,519,000 (2021 $278,515,000) and the total notianal floating
rate principa:amount at 31 December 2022 was €250,000,000 (2021 €250,000,000)- This 15 a f oating for fixed swap, with a fxed
interest rate of 6.71% (2021: 6.71%) and floating rates based on 3 5% (2021: 3.5%) above the 6 month EURIBOR {m rimum 0%}
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31. Derivative financia! instruments {continued}

Current Non-current

portion partion Total
Company £000 £'000 £'000
As at 31 Decamber 2022
Liab it es classified us held for trading (*)
Interest rate swaps 4,648 2,544 7,192
Crosscurcency swaps {303} {2,310} {2,613}
BasisRate swaps - - -
Totai 4,339 234 4,573
As at 31 December 2021
Liobifties class fied as held for trading (%}
interest rate swaps {2,208} {2,072) {4,280}
Cross currency swaps 15,904) 3,237 {2,667)
Basis Rate swaps - - -
Total 18,112) 1,165 (6,947)

{* ) These dervative finanaal instruments are a0t designated ashedges and so are required to be classfied as held for trading

The full fak value of a derwative f nanc al instrument s dassd ed as a non current asset or liabidity if the remaning matunity of the
tem is more than 12 maonths and, as a current asset or kabdty, if the maturity of the hedged tem is less than 12 months. The
denwative finanoialinstruments are not traded in an active market, but the far values are based on guoted market pr ces,
broker/dealer quotations, or alternative pricing sources with reasonable levek of price transparency. Therefore, these are
measured at fair value in accordance with the IFRS 13 classification hierarchy level 2

interast zate swaps
The noticna’ principal amounts of the cutstanding interast rate swap cantracts at 31 December 2022 were £193,681,120 {2021
£204,175.527), made up of £74,000,000 and €155 000,000 {2021: of £74,000,000 and €155,000,000) and have matunty dates in
2024 {2021:2024).

At 31 Becember 2022 the fixed interest rates vary from 0 46% 10 2 943 (2021:0 46 % to 2,94 %), and the main floating rates are
EURBOR and SONM Gains and losses are recognised as far value through proft orloss.

Cross currency rate swap

Tha Group holds feur cross currency rate swap contracts at 31 December 2022, all of which mature 1 2024 (2021. 2024) All four
contracts have origmalcurrency USD, with tatalva‘ue of $278,519,000 (2021:5278,519,000) and swapped currency EUR. The total
notonal fxed rate principal amoaunt at 31 December 2022 was $278,519,000 (2021: $278,519,000) and the total not onal floating
rate printipalamount at 31 December 2022 was €250,000,000 (2021: €250,000,000_This 15 a f oating for fixed swap, with a Fixed
mterest rate of § 7124{2021: 6 7177 and floating rates based on 3,5% (2021: 3.5%) above the 6 manth EUR BOR (minimum 0%).

32, Dividends
2022 2021
£4000 £000
Dividends paid £n 1{2021: £49.84) per £0.01 share - 12,719
- 12719
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33. Refated party transactioms

Balances and transact ons between the Company and its subsidianes, which are related parties, have been ehminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Transactions between the Group and its associates are disciosed below.

Trading transactions

During the year, Group companies entered into the following transactions with related parties who are not mermbers of the Growp:

Group

Warner Bras. Discavery, tac. and subs diaries
Liberty Global plc 2nd sub sidiaries

Seven Stones Lumited

Caravan Media Limited

Story Films Ltd and subsidiaries

Great Scott Media Limited

Studio Lambert Media {imaed

Studio Silverback L mited and subsid aries

3 Rock Productions Limited

Build Your Own Films Ltd

Company

warner Bros. Discovery, Inc. and subsidiares
Liberty Global ple. and subsidiaries

Sale of goods

Purchasa of goods and services

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 Pecember
2022 2021 2022 2021
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
118,490 97,903 1,500 1,500
275 316 1,500 1,500
377 344 22 -
s * - -

10 230 .
1,070 624 - B
- 1,198 . a2
4438 607 32 73
83 , . .
120,758 101,222 1,054 3,120
Sale of goods Purchase of goods and services
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 Decemb 31 Dacemb 31 December
2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £000 £7000 £000
- - 1,500 1,500
- - 1,500 1,500
. - 3,000 3.000
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33, Related party transactions {cantinued}

The folowing amounts were outstanding at the balance sheel dale.

Group Amounts owed by related Amounts owed to related
parties parties

31 December 31 December 31 December 11 December

2022 021 2022 2021

£'000 £'000 £°000 £'000

Warner Bros . Discovery, Inc. and subsidiaries 5,916 6,557 148,198 114 125

tiberty G obal plc and subsidiaries 71 151 222,250 188 537

Seven Stones Limited 1,325 2,781 - -

Caravan Media Uimited 365 476 - -

Story Films Ltd and subsidiaries 615 1,265 140 243
Great Scott Media Linited 1,067 819 -

Studio Lambert Media Limited and subsid atles - 1,125 - -
Studio Silverback Limited and subsidiaries 56 252 -

Bulion Productions Lim ted 25 3 - a8

3 Rock Praductions Limited 336 - - -
Build Your Own Films Ltd - - -

9,776 13,429 370,628 303,001

Company Amounts owed by related Amounts owed to related
parties parties

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2022 2021 2022 2021

£'000 £000 E'000 £'000

Warner Bros. Discovery, inc.and subsidiaries - - 147,990 114,112

Liberty Global plc and subsidianies - - 222,25%0 188,537

- - 370,280 302,649

Discovery In¢. and Liberty Glabal plc

Snice the acguisition on 23 September 2014 of All3Media Holdings Limited by DLG AcquisRions Limited there have been sales of
television progiammes and payments of royaities to subsidares of Liberty Global pic and Warner Bros, Discovery, inc.in addition,
subsidiaries of Liberty Global plc and Warner Bros. Discovery, inc. charge a tola. management fee of E3m per annum to OLG
Acquis Zions Limited.

Amounts repayable to Distovery Inc. and Liberly Global pl¢ carry mterest of 5.99% (2021 5 99%) per annum charged on the
outstand ing loan balances.

Other Related Parties

DLG Acquisitions Limited owns 19.99% of Caravan Media Limiked, 27.02 % of Seven Stories Lim ted, 32 5% of Stary Fims L, 24 59%
of Bullion Productions Limited, 20% of Great Scott Media Limsaed, 49.0% of Build Your Own Films Ltd and 12 5% of 3 Rock
Productions Limited.

Entities that are part of the Group have taken advantage of the exempt 'on from FR5101 and do not need to dixclose transactiong
within the Group where 300% of the subsidiary's voting rights are controied within the Group. The amounts outstanding are
unsecured and will be settied in cash. N¢ guarantees have been given or received. No provisions have been made for doubtful
debts in respect of the amounts owed by related part'es

Amounts owed by Caravan Media Limited carry interest at a rate of 5%+ 3 month SONIA, Amounts owed by Seven Stories Uimited
carry interest fixed at 1.76%. Amounts owed by Story Fims ttd and 8ullion Praductions Limited carry interest at rates of 1.5%+ BOE
base rate. Amounts owed by Great Scott Media Limited carry interest at rates of 2.0%+ BOE base rate
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34. Corpnrate arquisitinns

[}0n 2 December 2022, the Group acguired 100% of Pos Video & Television AV The follow :ng table sets out the book values of the
ldentifiable net assets acquired together with the provisional f3ir value to the Group

Fair value
Book value adjustment Fair value
£'000 £000 £'000
Intangible fixed assels 2,656 [a} 2,656
Deferred Tax hability on intang ble -
Property, p'ant and equipmemnt - - -

Right of use assets - -
Curvent assets 45 45
Cash 45 - 45
Current liabilties {90) - {90}
HNon-curient kabilities . .
Net habilities acquired - 2,656 2,656
Goodw Il recognised -
2,656

Mischarged by~

Consderat:on paid - cash 1,770
Deferred consideration —payab'e within 1 year B&6

Adjustmants:
{a) ‘dentified intangible assets representing forecast income on the distribution of the POSV catalogue acquired.

The Group acguired Pos Vdeo & Television 8.V as part of the Group's strategy to grow its television production business. The
ntang'ble asset recogrised rapresents synerg-es and future cashflows expected to be generated from the production of the
acquired formats

N&: Since Japuary 2021, the acquired company has been inact ve due to the production by IDTV of the formats and associated
raya‘ty agreement The scle source of income since 2021 was the royalty income derived from the productions of POSV formats by
IDTV.

As a component of the acqulsition, a’l royalty entitiements for 2022 productions have been reversed and included in the
determination of the purchase price of the company.-

Pos Video & Televlsion B ¥ ’s revenue for the full financial year 2022 was £qil. Revenue far the one manth of ownership in the
perad was also Emil. Pos Videc & te’evision B.V. made no profit or loss for the full financ ai year 2022. If Pos video & television B.V.
had been acquired on 1 January 2022, the Group’s profit or loss would not change for the Pinancial year 2022,

Gross contractual amounts of current assets recelvab’es as at acquisition date are £39,260 wh ch are expected to be collected.
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34. Corporate acquisitions (continued)
(W) On 1 September 2022, the Group executed the comnvertable Joan note at Studio Lambert Media Limited. The conversion aof the

ban notes resulted in the issue of 50,000 ordinary C shares of £0.001 each and 2,428 ordinary D shares of £0.001 each to the Group.
The Group now owns 50.1% aof voting rights and 24.99% of ecanamic rights of Studio Lambert Meda Limited and & subsitiaries.

Fair value
HBook value adjustment Fair valua
a3, 'y

£'000 £000 £'000
Inveniories 37,074 - 32,074
Current assets 304 - 304
Cash 4,803 - 4,803
Net current habilities excl. cash {44,913} - {44,913)
Net habilities acquired (2,732) . {2,732}
Gaodwill recegnsed 3,839
107

Discharged by:
Canversion of loan note to equity 107

Adiustments:

Between 1 January 2022 to 33 August 2022 Stud o Lambert Media Limited, and its subsidiaries, were accounted for as an Associate.
The group assessed the fair va'ue of Siud © Lambert Media at the acquisition date and dentified no further adjustments.

The Graup stepped up its investment In Studio Lambert Media Limited as part of the Group’s stralegy 10 grow its television
production bysiness.

Studio Lambert Media Limited, and its subsdiares, revenue for the full financial year 2022 was £47,122,000. Revenue for the three
maonths of ownershp in the penod was £37 199 000

Studio Lambert Media Lim#ed, and its subsdiaries, made a profit of £2,470,000 for the full financial year 2022. However, prafit for
the three manths of ownership was £4 090,000 .

if Studio Lambert Media Limited. and s subsidiare s, had been acquired on 1 January 2022, the Group’s revenue would have been
£1,030,215,000 and net loss would have been £40,772 000

Gross tontractual amaynts of current assels recewables as at acquisit on date are £304,000 winch are expected to be collected.

There were na other carporate acquisitions in 2022.

35, Parant and ultimate parent undertaking

The ult mate contralling parties at the balince sheet date were Liberty Global pk and Warner Bros. Discovery, Inc , which owned
LGCIHOKCo 1 BY and Discovery International UK Holkngs Limited, respectively, whch are joint owners of DLG Acquisitions
Limited .
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36. Parent audit exemption

The following subsidiaries are exempt from the requirements of this Act relating to the audit of accounts under section 4794 of the

Companies Act 2006:

Name of Company Company Numbar
CAZ Productions Limited 12749934
Zero Chill Productions Limited 12021001
Champion TV Finance Ltd 13776816
Aurora Media Worldwide UK Limited 5094691
Bentley Praductions Limited 1823410
Company Television Limited 3522155
Company Pictures Limited 3733209
Atrium Tv Limited 10633584
Red Rooster Television Limited 2534147
Mersey Acquisitions Limited 5470620
Manor Production Services Limited 8874907
DLG financing 2 Limited 9168112
DLG Financing 1 Limited 9168099
Assembly Film & Talevision Limited 2518727
All3Media USA Limited 8304115
Wings Atquisition Company Limited 10576690
Moneda Productions Limited 2952809
All3Media Holdings Limited 5860302
All3Media Finance Limited 5860159
All3Media Limited 4782820
DIGITAL RIGHTS GROUP LIMITED 5978061
Annika Stranded Finance Limited 12962200
Wild West Finance Limited 12769755
Rainforest Finance Limited 11683150
All3Media International Limited 3203247
The Lime Pictures Holding Company Limited 1588828
Mersey P L {imited 1475995
Lion Television Limited 31336416
Lime Pictures {Nursery) Limited 10045606
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35. Parent audit exemption {contiiued]

Lime Pictures {HH ) Limited 10211220
Lime Entertainment Limited 12462712
Ravenstourt Services Limited 3534197
Lioa Televsion North Limited 3645028
Lion Cubs Lmited 3927900
Lion Media Limked 3927869
Little Dot Stud ios Umited 8415628
Hit Networks Ltd 10559854
Maverick Te'evision Limited 2866002
Merton Books Limited 8898635
New Pictures Limded 8241917
Witchery Pictures Lynited 11)11295
North One Televisoon Limited 23155496
DirtQuake Limited 10741836
Eledric Talent Limited ! 6389298
Betty TV Limit ed 4311471
QF Productions {Us) Limited 11372899
Objective Media Group Limited 2705218
QOF Productions {Toast ] Limited 12508807
One Polato Two Potato L'mited 6572441
Raw Factuai Limited 11256248
Raw Scripted Lirmited 11256227
Raw 1990 Limited [previously Raw Vague Limited}) 14167110
Raw Calfornia Limited [previousty Raw Wild West Limited) 13947748
Weslbridge Praductions Limited 9483090
Studio Lambert Limited 64561004
Studic Lambert Associates Limited 9227451
Stud © Lambert Media L-mited 12115640
Twa Brothers Pictures L mited 7822665
Unstappable Film and Television Limited 9790290
West Road Pictures Limited 11730008
DALG Productions Limited 12879938
Da g 2 Productions Limited 13877037
CA2 Productions Limited 12749934
TSP2 Preductions Limited 11483582
Mud Productions Limited 12209883
Requiem Productions Limited 10475471




